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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members

Your directors take pleasure in presenting the Seventh (7™) Annual Report of the Company together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024.

STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Your Company has shown continuous growth in its asset under management (AUM) and profitability over
the years. The AUM of the Company crossed a milestone of X 3,000 crore for the financial year ended March
31, 2024 (gross AUM of X 3,070 as at 31 March 2024) with profit after tax (PAT) of X 48 crore. The asset quality
metric remains healthy with gross NPAs at 1.4%. Your Company continues to focus on providing Term Loans
and Working Capital facilities to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) working in the identified
eleven Industry-Geographic clusters.

In May 2024, the Company received the Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (IRDAI) to act as Corporate Agent (Composite). This registration shall be valid
from 17-May-2024 to 16-May-2027. This will facilitate the Company to partner with Life, Health and General
Insurance companies as Corporate Agent and to offer their insurance products to its customers along with
the loan facilities.

During the year under review, the Company has been successful in further diversifying its lender base and
established relationship with 35 lenders including public sector banks, private sector banks, NBFCs and Small
Finance Banks. Actis, anchor investor continued its equity support during the financial year.

The external credit rating of the Company has been consistently upgraded over the last 5 years. In October
2023, CARE Ratings upgraded the long-term credit rating of the Company by 1 notch to ‘CARE A/Stable’ ("A”
with Stable Outlook). CRISIL has an outstanding credit rating of ‘CRISIL A- / Positive’ (“A” Minus with Positive
Outlook) for long term and ‘CRISIL A1’ for short term.

Your Company operates from 28 locations with branches in states of Maharashtra (Mumbai, Pune, Kolhapur,
Nagpur, Nashik) Gujarat (Ahmedabad, Surat, Rajkot, Vadodara, Vapi) Madhya Pradesh (Indore, Bhopal),
Rajasthan (Jaipur), Delhi, Haryana (Panchkula, Gurugram), West Bengal (Kolkata), Telangana (Hyderabad),
Andhra Pradesh (Vijayawada, Vishakhapatnam), Tamil Nadu (Coimbatore, Chennai, Madurai,
Salem),Karnataka (Bengaluru), Assam (Guwahati), Chhattisgarh (Raipur) and Punjab (Ludhiana).

The investment in new branches, people management, Information Technology expected to create leverage
in gaining scale and profitability in near future.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY / HIGHLIGHTS:

The financial highlights for the financial year under review is as under:
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(Amount in Rs. Lakh)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Total Income 40,282 27,306
Total Expenditure 33,829 23,305
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 6,453 4,001
Less- Provision for tax 1,637 1,008
Profit / (Loss) after tax (A) 4,816 2,993
Other Comprehensive income after tax (B) -10 -61
Total Comprehensive income/ (Loss) of the 4,806 2,932
Company (A+B)

DIVIDEND

Your directors do not recommend declaration of any dividend for the year under review in view of the need
to conserve capital for expansion of the Company's lending operations.

AMOUNT CARRIED TO RESERVES

The Company has transferred Rs.963.23 Lakh to statutory reserves in compliance with Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 during the year ended March 31, 2024.

SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE / JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture and associate company; accordingly, disclosures
required to be made under Rule 8(1) and Rule 8(5)(iv) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 relating to
subsidiary, joint venture and associate companies are not applicable to the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Authorised share capital of the Company is Rs.1000,00,00,000/- divided into 98,00,00,000 equity shares
of Rs.10 each and 2,00,00,000 preference shares of Rs.10 each.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was Rs.7,36,99,96,860 /-
divided into 73,69,99,686 equity shares of Rs.10/- each and Rs.13,29,99,000/- divided into 1,32,99,900
Preference Shares of Rs.10 each.

DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company issued listed Non-Convertible Debentures on a private placement
basis to the identified investors, as under:

e 3,500 rated, listed, secured, redeemable, non-convertible debentures having a face value of
Rs.1,00,000 each at an aggregate value of Rs.35,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty-Five Crore) to Nippon Life
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India Trustee Ltd-A/C Nippon India Credit Risk Fund, Nippon Life India Trustee Ltd-A/C Nippon India
Fixed Horizon Fund XIV - SR5, and Morgan Stanley India Primary Dealer Private Limited on April 12,
2023.

e 1,450 senior, secured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of a face value of
Rs.1,00,000 each, aggregating up to Rs. 14,50,00,000 (Rupees Fourteen Crore Fifty Lakh) to TRUSTMF
Fixed Maturity Plan — SERIES I, Trust Investment Advisors Private Limited and Morgan Stanley India
Primary Dealer Private Limited on May 19, 2023.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGE

During the year under review, the Company has further issued listed Non-Convertible Debentures, on a
private placement basis, on the National Stock Exchange (NSE) in compliance with the applicable SEBI
regulations. The Company has also adhered to its obligations under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, payment of Annual listing fees and other applicable rules and
regulations.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Company continues to maintain a healthy capital adequacy ratio of 39.22% against the regulatory
requirement of 15% as on March 31, 2024

BORROWINGS / CREDIT RATINGS

During the year under review, the Company raised credit facilities amounting to Rs.1,385.56 crore which
includes term loans, NCD, securitisation, cash credit and other facilities. The Company expanded its borrowing
relationship to 35 lending institutions as on March 31, 2024, from 28 lending institutions as on March 31,
2023.

The total outstanding borrowings was Rs.1,986.80 crore as on March 31, 2024 (Rs. 1791.82 crore as on March
31, 2023). The debt-to-equity ratio stood at 1.78 as on March 31, 2024.

During the year under review, the outlook on credit rating of the Company was upgraded from “CARE A-
/Stable” to "CARE A/Stable” (pronounced as ‘CARE Single A with Stable Outlook’) by CARE Ratings Limited.
The Company has the following credit ratings as on March 31, 2024:

Sl. No. Credit Facility Rated Amt. Credit Rating Rating Agency
(INR Cr)
1 Bank Facilities 1,000 | CRISIL A- / Positive & CRISIL Ratings Ltd.
CRISIL A1
2 Non-Convertible 89.5 | CRISIL A- / Positive
Debentures
3 Bank Facilities 1000 | CARE A/ Stable CARE Ratings Ltd.
4 Non-Convertible 30 | CARE A / Stable
Debentures
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RESERVE BANK OF INDIA (RBI) GUIDELINES

The Company complies in all material respects, with the prudential norms relating to income recognition,
asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts and other matters, specified in directions/
guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India, from time to time as applicable to the Company.

Your Company is a non-deposit taking non-banking financial company registered with the Reserve Bank of
India (“RBI") and classified as NBFC — Middle Layer under RBI ‘Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-
Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.

The Company adheres to the Master Directions - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important
Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide
notification no. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/45 Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September
01, 2016/Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023 issued vide notification no. RBI/DoR/2023-24/105 DoR.FIN.REC.N0.45/03.10.119/2023-24
dated October 19, 2023 and other guidelines as applicable to the systemically important non-deposit taking
NBFCs, as amended from time to time and applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company, being a Non-Deposit Accepting or Holding Non-Banking
Financial Company, has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public and shall not accept any
deposits from the public without obtaining prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India.

Accordingly, the disclosure requirements under Rule 8(5)(v) and (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
are not applicable to the Company.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and rules made
thereunder, loans made, guarantees given or securities provided by the Company are exempt from the
compliance with the requirements of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(g) of the Act, the particulars of investments made under Section 186 of the Act is
provided in note no. 6 to the financial statements.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, there were no related party transaction(s) entered into by
the Company pursuant to Section 188 of the Act. Hence, prescribed Form AOC-2 and disclosure under Para
A of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing
Regulations”) does not form a part of this Report. The policy on related party transactions is available on the
Company's website: https://www.profectuscapital.com.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The composition of Board of Directors of your Company complies with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. During the year under review, no change in the Directors of
your Company. Your Board consisted of five (5) directors as on March 31, 2024 viz. Mr. K V Srinivasan (DIN:
01827316), Whole-Time Director; Mr. Asanka Rodrigo (DIN: 03010463), Mr. Pratik Jain (DIN: 05347739), Mr.
Hossameldin Aboumoussa (DIN: 08999601) as Non-Executive Directors and Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar
(DIN: 01875316) as Non- Executive Independent Director.

All the Directors meet the fit and proper criteria stipulated under the Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India
(Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023

There has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company during the year under review.
The Key Managerial Personnel include Mr. K'V Srinivasan, Chief Executive Officer & Whole-time Director, Mr.
Sandip Parikh, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Nitin Pangarkar, Company Secretary & Chief Compliance
Officer.

All Directors of the Company being non-rotational Directors as per the Articles of Association, none is liable
to retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

There has been no pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the
Company during the period under review.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors

hereby confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along
with proper explanations relating to material departures;

b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and
estimates made are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit/ loss of the Company for that period;

c) proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act have been taken for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and

e) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Your Company has complied with its Corporate Social Responsibility obligations under Section 135 of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The Annual
Report on the CSR activities of the Company in the prescribed format is an annexed as Annexure | to the
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Board Report. The CSR policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company-
www.profectuscapital.com.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate Governance Report for the financial year 2023-24 as stipulated in the Section Il of annexure
VIl - on Disclosure in Financial Statements - Notes to Accounts of NBFCs of Master Direction- Reserve Bank
of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, forms part of the
Annual Report as Annexure Il. The Corporate Governance Report contains Board Meeting held during the
year 2023-24, Statutory Committee Details and other statutory details.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the financial year 2023-24. as stipulated in Annexure
XXII- Indicative List of Balance Sheet Disclosure for NBFCs in Middle Layer and above of the Master Direction-
Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023, forms
part of the Annual Report as Annexure lll.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

The Company has prepared these financials to comply in all material respect with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended, relevant provisions
of the Companies Act 2013, various regulatory guidelines to the extent relevant and applicable to the
Company and in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
on Board Meetings and General Meetings.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has designed suitable processes to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. Company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the Company and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Your directors confirm that the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting are operating effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S AND THEIR REPORT

The Company has complied the circular No. DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27, 2021
issued by Reserve Bank of India covering guidelines for Appointment of Statutory Auditors (SAs) of
Commercial banks, (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including HFCs) which inter alia provides for the
appointment of Statutory Auditors for a continuous period of three years.

M/s. Batliboi & Purohit, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 101048W) were appointed as statutory auditors of the
Company for the term of three years for the financial years 2021-22 to 2023-24 and to hold the office till the
conclusion of the 7t Annual General Meeting of the Company.

M/s. S R Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (FRN. 301003E/ E300005) were appointed as statutory
auditors of the Company for the term of three years for the financial years 2023-24 to 2025-26 and to hold
the office till the conclusion of the 9™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

During the year under review, there were no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made
by the statutory auditors in their reports.

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S AND THEIR REPORT

During the year under review, M/s. Purwar & Purwar Associates LLP , Practising Company Secretaries (COP
No. 5918) ( formally known as "M/s. Pradeep Purwar & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries”) were
appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company to conduct Secretarial Auditor for the financial year
2023-24. The Secretarial Auditors have conducted secretarial audit in accordance with provisions of Section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and issued a Secretarial Audit Report for FY 2023-24, a copy of same is
enclosed as Annexure IV to this report.

The report does not contain any qualification or reservation or any adverse remarks and is self-explanatory.
INTERNAL AUDITOR’S AND THEIR REPORT

The internal audit function provides an assurance to the Audit Committee/Board of Directors and the Senior
Management on the quality and effectiveness of Company’s internal controls, risk management and
governance related systems and processes. During the year under review, M/s. Aneja Associates, Chartered

Accountants were appointed as Internal Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24.

M/s. Aneja Associates, Internal Auditors presented their Report(s) for financial year 2023-24 to the Audit
Committee.

COST RECORDS

The Company is not engaged in any business prescribed under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and therefore, the Company is not required to prepare and maintain cost records as specified thereunder.
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED INFORMATION

The information regarding employee remuneration as required pursuant to Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is not provided as the same is not
applicable to the Company.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

The Company has formulated an employee stock option scheme namely, PCPL Employee Stock Option Plan
2018 to align the efforts of the employee towards the long-term value creation in the organisation and to
give them opportunity to participate and gain from the Company's performance, thereby, acting as a
retention tool.

During the year under review, the Company has granted 5,100 options to the eligible employees in terms of
PCPL Employee Stock Option Plan 2018. No stock options are granted to any Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company for the period under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

Your Company, being a non-banking financial company, the operations of Company are not energy intensive
and thus, do not require adoption of any specific technology. However, the Company is making continuous
efforts to conserve energy by adoption of innovative measures to reduce wastage and optimize consumption.

Hence, the Information as required to be given under Section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not provided in this Report.

The foreign exchange earnings and outgo stood at Rs. Nil and Rs.10,99,980 respectively during the year under
review.

VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company, pursuant to the provisions of section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, has established a vigil mechanism for its directors and
employees to report the genuine concerns.

The Company has adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy which provides a channel to the employees and Directors
to raise and report serious irregularities, malpractices, unethical behaviour and actual or suspected fraud etc.
in the Company. The mechanism also provides adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees
and Directors, who avail the said mechanism to report concerns.

During the year under review, there were no incidents reported under the Vigil Mechanism Policy.

The details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism are disclosed on the Company's website:
https://www.profectuscapital.com/vigil-mechanism-policy/
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 92(3) and Section 134(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 of
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, a copy of annual return of the Company is
available on the Company’s website:_https://www.profectuscapital.com/annual-return/

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Management is an integral part of the Company's business strategy. Risk Management at the Company
includes risk identification, risk assessment, risk measurement and risk mitigation with its main objective to
minimise negative impact on profitability and capital. The Company is exposed to various risks that are an
inherent part of any financial service business.

The risk management framework is steered by the Board through the Risk Management Committee (RMC)
and Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) for enabling liquidity. Risk Management at the Company covers Credit
Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, Fraud Risk and other risks.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is a risk of loss due to failure of a borrower to meet the contractual obligation of
repaying debt as per agreed terms. Credit risk is managed by using a set of credit norms and policies of the
company. Company has a structured and standardised credit approval process including customer selection
criteria, comprehensive credit risk assessment, which encompasses analysis of relevant quantitative and
qualitative information to ascertain the credit worthiness of the borrower.

Market Risk: Market risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates and other asset prices. The
company'’s exposure to market risk is a function of asset liability management and interest rate sensitivity
assessment. The company can be exposed to interest rate risk and liquidity risk, if the same are not managed
properly. The Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) reviews market-related trends and risks and
adopts various strategies related to assets and liabilities, in line with the company’s risk management
framework.

Operational Risk: Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people, or systems, or from external events. The operational risks of the company are managed through
comprehensive internal control systems and procedures and key back up processes. The company has
established risk control self-assessment to identify process lapses by way of exception reporting. This enables
the management to evaluate key areas of operational risks and the process to adequately mitigate them on
an ongoing basis.

Interest Rate Risk: The Company largely depends on resources raised from the banking system and market
instruments to carry on their operations. They are therefore significantly vulnerable to interest rate
movements in the market. The funding strategies adopted by the company ensure diversified resources
raising options to minimise cost and maximise stability of funds.

REPORTING OF FRAUD

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud as specified under the second proviso of Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
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SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the Company and its operations in the future.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION,
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to creating a safe and conducive work environment that enables employees to
work without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual harassment. The Company believes that all employees,
including other persons who have been dealing with the company, have the right to be treated with respect
and dignity. Sexual harassment in any form is an offence and is therefore punishable.

The Company has formulated a code of conduct for prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual
harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. Further, the Company has duly
constituted Employee Protection Committee at the Company and branch level to function as the Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) as defined under the Sexual Harassment at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

During the year under review, no case of sexual harassment was reported at any of the workplaces of the
Company.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund as at
March 31, 2024.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended March
31, 2024.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Except as mentioned in this report, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company between the end of the financial period and the date of this Report.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There was no application made or proceeding initiated or pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 against your Company during the year under review and as on date.
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ONE TIME SETTLEMENT

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution during the year under
review and as on date.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board takes this opportunity to record its sincere appreciation for the dedicated services rendered by
employees at all levels. We would like to express our grateful appreciation for the assistance and support
extended by all government authorities, regulatory authorities, stakeholders, bankers, suppliers, consultants,
auditors and other business associates. Your involvement as shareholders is also greatly valued.

Your directors look forward to your continuing support.

for PROFECTUS CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

Sd- Sd-

KV SRINIVASAN PRATIK JAIN
WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR & CEO DIRECTOR
DIN: 01827316 DIN: 05347739

Date: May 23, 2024
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE |

Annual Report on CSR activities for the Financial Year 2023-24

1. Brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company:

Profectus Capital Private Limited (“PCPL"”) (NBFC NDSI) incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 and
registered with Reserve Bank of India. The Company has adopted this Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
accordance with the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Company,
through its CSR projects, will lay down guidelines and mechanism for undertaking social, economic and
environmental useful programmes for welfare & sustainable development of the community at large and
over a period of time enhance the quality of life and economic wellbeing of the local populace.

Objective of the Company to develop a long-term vision and strategy for PCPL CSR objectives and deliver
sustainable impact and elevate the quality of life of the most marginalized communities in areas where PCPL
intervenes through its CSR initiatives, to promote projects that are sustainable and create a long-term change
in alignment with PCPL philosophy address the most deserving cause or beneficiaries.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sr. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Number of Number of
No. Directorship meetings of CSR [meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee
during the year |attended during

the year
1 [Mr. Sudarshan Sampathkumar| Independent Director NIL NIL
2 | Mr. Pratik Jain Non- Executive Director NIL NIL
3 |[Mr. KV Srinivasan Whole- Time Director and CEO NIL NIL

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company:
https://www.profectuscapital.com/

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

As the Company is not having average CSR obligation of ten crore rupees or more in pursuance of sub
section (5) of section 135 of the Act, in the three immediately preceding financial years, an impact
assessment is not applicable on the Company.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year,
if any

Sl. No. | Financial Year | Amount available for set-off Amount required to be set-off for
from preceding financial years | the financial year, if any (in Rs)
(in Rs)

1 Not Applicable

PROFECTUS CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMITED



PROFECTUS
ECAPITAL

6. (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- Rs. 2003 Lakh

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)- Rs.40.07 Lakh

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous FY -NA

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any — NA
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (a+b-c) — Rs. 40.07Lakh

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: -

Total Amount Unspent (Rupees in Lakh)
Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the . .
. . Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
Financial section 135(6) 135(5)
Year. (in Rs.
Lakh)
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of transfer
transfer Fund
40.10.00 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
11]@ (3) 4) (5) © | (@ (8 9 (100 | (11)
)
s | Nam | Item Local | Location Pr | Amou | Amou | Amount | Mod | Mode of
N. | e of | from |area | of the | oje | nt nt transfer | e of | Implementati
Proje | the (Yes/ | project ct | alloca | spent red to | Impl | on - Through
ct list of | No) du | ted in the | Unspen | eme | Implementin
activit rati | for current [t CSR | ntati | g Agency
ies in on | the financi | Accoun | on -
Sched projec | al Year | t for the | Direc
ule VII t (in]| (in project |t
to the Lakh) | Lakh) as per | (Yes/
Act Section | No)
135(6)
(in
Lakh)
Stat | Distr Na CSR
e ict me | Registr
ation
numbe
r

Not Applicable
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

m @ (3) (4) (5) (6) (7 (8)
Sl. | Name of the | Item Local | Location of the project | Amount | Mode of | Mode of
No. | Project from the | area spent implementation | implementation
list of | (Yes/ for the | Direct (Yes/No) | Through implementing
activities | No) project agency
in (in
schedule Lakh)
Vil to
the Act
State District Name CSR
Registration
number
1. STEP (School | (ii) Yes Punjab & | All district | 40.10. No Mantra CSR00000796
Transformation Karnataka | in Punjab Social
and and Services
Empowerment Tumkur in
Project) Karnataka
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8C+8d+8e): Rs 40.10 Lakh
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Yes
SI. No. Particular Amount
(Rupees in
Lakh)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 40.07
section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 40.10
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] .03
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of -
the previous financial years, if any
(V) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] .03
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Sl. Preceding Amount Amount spent| Amount transferred to any | Amount
No. | Financial Year | transferred to in the fund specified under remaining to
Unspent CSR reporting Schedule VIl as per section | be spent in
Account under| Financial Year 135(6), if any succeeding
seCt'(?:;:)s 6 (in Rs.) Name of | Amount | Date of e:::;:;':ls)
) the Fund| (in Rs.) | transfer y .
1. Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
SI. | ProjectID | Name of Financial | Project| Total | Amount [Cumulative| Status of
No. the Project |Year in which|duration| amount | spent on | amount [the project
the project allocatedthe project| spent at -
was for the in the |the end of |Completed
commenced project | reporting | reporting |/ Ongoing
(in Rs.) | Financial | Financial
Year (in | Year. (in
Rs.) Rs.)
1. Not Applicable

10.In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year — (asset-wise details)- Not Applicable

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is

registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location

of the capital asset).

11.Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable

for Profectus Capital Private Limited

Sd-

K V Srinivasan

Sd-

Sudarshan Sampathkumar

Whole time Direct & CEO
DIN: 01827316

Date: May 23, 2024
Place: Mumbai

Chairperson, CSR Committee
DIN: 01875316
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ANNEXURE II
Corporate Governance Report
The Board of the Company is an apex body, which oversees overall functioning, provides a strategic, direction,
guidance, leadership and owns the fiduciary responsibility to ensure that your company’s actions and
objectives are aligned in creating long term value for its stakeholders. The Board helps the Company in
adhering high Corporate Governance practice.

1) Composition of the Board:

The Board is comprised of 4 (four) directors of the Company. During the year under review, four (4) meetings
were held on May 22, 2023, July 27, 2023, October 31, 2023 and February 6, 2024.

Sl. | Name of Direc | Capacity DIN Number | No. Remuneration No.
N | Director tor (i.e. of Board | of of
o. since | Executive Meeting | other share
/ Non- s Direc s held
Executive torshi in
/ ps and
Chairman conve
/ Hel | At Salary | Sitting | Co | rtible
Promoter d te and Fee m instru
nominee/ nd other mis | ments
Independ ed compe sio | held
ent) nsatio n in the
n NBFC
1. | Mr.KV 09/06 | Whole- 01827316 4 4 1 - Nil Nil Nil
Srinivasan /2017 | Time
Director &
CEO
2. | Mr. Asanka 22/06 | Non- 03010463 4 4 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Rodrigo /2018 | Executive
Director
3. Mr. Pratik Jain 23/02 | Non- 05347739 4 4 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
/2018 | Executive
Director
4. | Mr. Sudarshan 22/01 | Non- 01875316 4 4 1 Nil 10,00,0 | Nil Nil
Sampathkumar | /2020 | Executive 00
Independe
nt Director
5 | Mr. 28/06 | Non- 08999601 4 2 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Hossameldin /2021 | Executive
Aboumoussa Director

Note- Mr. Asanka Rodrigo, Mr. Pratik Jain and Mr. Hossameldin Aboumoussa are representatives of Actis, the
shareholder of the Company holding 100% share capital of the Company.
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Details of change in composition of the Board during the current and previous financial year:

The are no changes which took place in the composition of the Board of the Company during the current
financial year viz., 2023-24 and previous financial year viz., 2022-23.

Where an independent director resigns before expiry of his/ her term, the reasons for resignation as
given by him/her shall be disclosed.

No such instance during the financial year under review and hence the said section is not applicable.
2) Committees of the Board and their composition:

The Board of the Company has constituted various Board committees in compliance with the extant rules
and regulations applicable to the Company. The requisite details of the Committees including the
composition and summerised terms of reference, pursuant to Section Il of annexure VIl - on Disclosure in
Financial Statements - Notes to Accounts of NBFCs of Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking
Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023are given below:

a) Audit Committee

The Board of the Company has constituted Audit Committee in accordance with provisions of the Master
Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation) Directions, 2023.
The Audit Committee is comprised of 3 (three) directors of the Company. During the year under review, four
(4) meetings were held on May 22, 2023, July 27, 2023, October 31, 2023 and February 6, 2024. The details
regarding meetings are as under:

SI. | Name of Director | Member of Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. Committee Executive/ Non- Meetings of the | shares
since Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in
Promoter nominee/ the NBFC
Independent) Held | Attended
1 Mr. Sudarshan 22/01/2020 Non- Executive 4 4 Nil
Sampathkumar Independent Director
2 Mr. Pratik Jain 03/05/2018 Non- Executive Director | 4 4 Nil
3 Mr. Hossameldin 28/06/2021 Non- Executive Director | 4 4 Nil
Aboumoussa

The summary of terms of reference of Audit Committee includes the following:

e To give recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company;

e To review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

e To examine the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;

e To approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

e To scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

e To valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

e To evaluate the internal financial controls and risk management systems;

e To monitor the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; and

e Any other responsibility as may be assigned by the Board from time to time;
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The Board of the Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in accordance with
provisions of the Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is comprised of 3 (three)
directors of the Company. During the year under review, one (1) meeting was held on May 23, 2023.

SI. | Name of Director | Member Capacity (i.e., Number of Meetings | No. of
No. of Executive/ Non- of the Committee shares
Committee | Executive/ Chairman/ held in
since Promoter nominee/ Held Attended | the NBFC
Independent)
1 Mr. Asanka Rodrigo | 22/06/2018 | Non- Executive Director 1 1 Nil
2 | Mr. Pratik Jain 03/05/2018 | Non- Executive Director 1 1 Nil
3 | Mr. Hossameldin 28/06/2021 | Non- Executive Director 1 1 Nil
Aboumoussa

The summary of terms of reference of NRC Committee includes the following:

e To identify person who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in the Nomination and Remuneration Policy;
e To review implementation and compliance of the evaluation mechanism/process;
e To recommend the Board, the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management;
e To recommend the Board a policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and

other employees;

e To review Nomination & Remuneration Policy, Fit & Proper Criteria Policy and such other Polices on

annual (to be determined) basis and recommendation of modification, if any, to the Board;
e To implement and monitor the implementation of the ESOP Schemes of the Company; any
e To perform such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from

time to time;

c) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

The Board of the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. The Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee comprised of 3 (three) directors of the Company.

Sl. | Name of Director Member Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. of Executive/ Non- Meetings of the shares
Committee | Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in
since Promoter nominee/ the
Independent) Held | Attended | NBFC
1. Mr. Sudarshan 08/08/2022 | Non- Executive Nil Nil Nil
Sampathkumar Independent Director
2. Mr. KV Srinivasan 08/08/2022 | Whole-Time Director & Nil Nil Nil
CEO
3. Mr. Pratik Jain 08/08/2022 | Non- Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
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The summary of terms of reference of CSR includes the following:

To formulate and recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities required to be
undertaken by the Company, in areas or subject, specified in Schedule VII of the Act;

To monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time and an annual action plan in pursuance of
its CSR policy;

To recommend to the Board, the Company’s Annual Report on CSR Activities, for inclusion in the Report
of the Board of Directors of the Company;

To establish regular and transparent communication channels in which stakeholders can learn of our
programmes and performance in a transparent way;

To put in place and monitor programmes and policies that support a high level of business performance
that values honesty, partnership and fairness in relationships with all stakeholders; and

To work across the Company to embed CSR within the strategic decision making, operations,
procurement, stakeholder (including employees) engagement programmes;

d) Risk Management Committee

The Board of the Company has constituted Risk Management Committee in accordance with provisions of
the Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based Regulation)
Directions, 2023. The Risk Management Committee (“RMC") is comprised of 2 (two) directors & 3 (three)
officials of the Company. During the year under review, two (2) meetings were held on May 15, 2023 and
October 26, 2023.

Sl. | Name of Director Member Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. of Executive/ Non- Meetings of the shares
Committee | Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in
since Promoter nominee/ the
Independent) Held Attended | NBFC
1. Mr. Pratik Jain 11/07/2021 | Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Director
2. Mr. KV Srinivasan 22/01/2020 | Whole-Time Director & 2 2 Nil
CEO
3. Mr. Sandip Parikh 22/01/2020 | Chief Financial Officer 2 2 Nil
4. Mr. Nimesh Parikh 22/01/2020 | Chief Risk Officer 2 2 Nil
5. Mr. Vitthal Naik 22/01/2020 | Chief Technology 2 2 Nil
Officer

The summary of terms of reference of RMC includes the following:

e To monitor the adherence to the risk policy and guidelines and reviewing the overall risk
management system considering changes in external and internal environment within which the
Company operates

To monitor on overall process of evaluation and assessment, progress of evaluation of control
effectiveness, key control deficiencies observed and counter measures to address these. Monitoring
would also include significant changes in assessment of key risks or new risks identified if any.

Review and approve modifications to existing policies, procedures, and other risk parameters on a
periodic (at least annual) basis.
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e) Asset Liability Committee

The Board of the Company has constituted Asset Liability Committee (“ALCO") in accordance with
provisions of the Master Direction- Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company — Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023. The Asset Liability Committee comprised of 1 (one) director & 2 (two)
Officials of the Company. During the year under review, four (4) meetings were held on May 3, 2023, July
19, 2023, October 19, 2023 and January 29, 2024.

Sl. | Name of Director Member Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. of Executive/ Non- Meetings of the shares
Committee | Executive/ Committee held in
since Chairman/ Promoter the
nominee/ Held Attended | NBFC
Independent)
1. Mr. KV Srinivasan 22/01/2020 | Whole-Time Director 4 4 Nil
& CEO
2. Mr. Sandip Parikh 22/01/2020 | Chief Financial Officer 4 4 Nil
3. Mr. Nimesh Parikh 22/01/2020 | Chief Risk Officer 4 4 Nil

The summary of terms of reference of Asset Liability Committee includes the following:

f)

To ensure the adherence to the liquidity and interest rate risk limits set;

To decide the desired maturity profile and mix of incremental assets and liabilities, source and mix of
liabilities or sale of assets, balance sheet management and hedging strategies;

To strategic management of interest rate, liquidity and Market risks;

To consider and reviewing assumptions for classification of components of assets and liabilities for
different time buckets and consider and review internal limits;

To monitor liquidity profile of the Company and to act on early warning indicators of liquidity crisis,
maturity profile of outstanding and incremental assets and liabilities;

To monitor strategy on composition of liabilities and assets;

To Constituting sub-committees/ ALCO support group as may be required and review the functioning of
the same and in addition to monitoring the risk levels of the Company, the ALCO shall review the results
of and progress in implementation of the decisions made in the previous meetings.

IT Strategy Committee

The Board has constituted IT Strategy Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Master Direction - Reserve
Bank of India (Information Technology Governance, Risk, Controls and Assurance Practices) Directions, 2023.
The IT strategy Committee comprised of 3 (three) directors & 3 (three) officials of the Company. During the
year under review, two (2) IT meetings were held on July 21, 2023 and January 15, 2024. The Chairman of the
IT Strategy Committee is a Non- Executive Independent Director and CTO/ CIO are part of the Committee.
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SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. Committee Executive/ Non- Meetings of the | shares
since Executive/ Committee held in
Chairman/ the NBFC
Promoter nominee/ Held | Attended
Independent)
1. Mr. Sudarshan 22/01/2020 Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Sampathkumar Independent Director
2. Mr. KV Srinivasan 22/01/2020 Whole-Time Director 2 2 Nil
& CEO
3. Mr. Pratik Jain 2/09/2021 Non- Executive 2 2 Nil
Director
4. Mr. Vitthal Naik 22/01/2020 Chief Technology 2 2 Nil
Officer
5. Mr. Sandip Parikh 22/01/2020 Chief Financial Officer 2 2 Nil
Mr. Nimesh Parikh 22/01/2020 Chief Risk Officer 2 0 Nil

The summary of terms of reference of IT Strategy committee includes the following:

Ensure that the PCPL has put an effective IT strategic planning process in place;

Guide in preparation of IT Strategy and ensure that the IT Strategy aligns with the overall strategy of the
PCPL towards accomplishment of its business objectives;

Satisfy itself that the IT Governance and Information Security Governance structure fosters accountability,
is effective and efficient, has adequate skilled resources, well defined objectives and unambiguous
responsibilities for each level in the organisation;

Ensure that the PCPL has put in place processes for assessing and managing IT and cybersecurity risks;
Ensure that the budgetary allocations for the IT function (including for IT security), cyber security are
commensurate with the PCPL's IT maturity, digital depth, threat environment and industry standards and
are utilised in a manner intended for meeting the stated objectives; and

Review, at least on annual basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Business Continuity Planning and
Disaster Recovery Management of the organisation.

Approving IT strategy and policy documents

Perform oversight functions over the IT Steering Committee (at a senior management level)

Reviewing IT performance measurement and contribution of IT to businesses (i.e., delivering the promised
value)

Mapping of long-range IT strategy needs to short-range plans regularly, for achievability

Offer advice, suggestions and improvements to improve business processes, techniques and IT
infrastructure and evaluate new changes introduced by IT steering committee.
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g) Borrowing Committee

The Borrowing Committee comprised of 2 (two) directors of the Company.

SI. | Name of Director | Member of Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. Committee Executive/ Non- Meetings of the | shares
since Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in
Promoter nominee/ the
Independent) Held | Attend | NBFC
ed
1. Mr. Pratik Jain 31/05/2022 Non- Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
2. Mr. KV Srinivasan 31/05/2022 Whole-Time Director & Nil Nil Nil
CEO

The summary of terms of reference of Borrowing Committee includes the following:

e To exercise all powers / functions to borrow money by way of financial / loan or credit facilities within
the limits approved by the Board from time to time and take any action as may be deemed necessary in
this regard;

e To exercise all powers / functions to borrow money by way of issue and allotment of debentures / bonds
/ similar securities within the limits approved by the Board from time to time and take any action as may
be deemed necessary in this regard, including
(i) to consider and approve the particular terms of each issue of debentures within the overall limits of
prescribed by the Board and the members of the Company from time to time;

(i) to consider and approve any terms or modifications for each issue of debentures and;
(iii) to direct any officers of the Company to do such things and to take such actions as the Company is
entitled to do or take (as the case may be) in terms of the resolutions set out herein;

e To identifying the investors to whom the signed, addressed to and serially numbered private placement

offer cum application letter ("PPOA") shall be issued to and issue the PPOA to such investors;

e To allot debt securities including the debentures pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and any other applicable regulations for the time being in force;

e To approve opening and operation of accounts with banks pursuant to the terms of borrowings /
statutory requirements including the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder;

e To review banking arrangements and cash management;

e To give guarantees / issue letters of comfort / providing security within the limits approved by the Board;

e To delegate authorities from time to time to the executives / authorised persons to implement the
Borrowing Committee’s decisions; and

e To carry out any other function as is mandated/ required by the Board from time to time and/or enforced
by any statutory notification, amendment or modification as may be applicable.
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The Allotment Committee comprised of 2 (two) directors of the Company.

SI. | Name of Director Member of Capacity (i.e., Number of No. of
No. Committee Executive/ Non- Meetings of the | shares
since Executive/ Chairman/ Committee held in
Promoter nominee/ the
Independent) NBFC
Held Atten
ded
1. Mr. Pratik Jain 24/09/2018 | Non- Executive Director Nil Nil Nil
2. Mr. KV Srinivasan 24/09/2018 | Whole-Time Director & Nil Nil Nil
CEO

The summary of terms of reference of Allotment Committee includes the following:

e To take all necessary steps for allotment of shares, issue of share certificates.
e To perform such other functions as entrusted to it by the Board of the Company and by the law from

time to time.

3) General Body Meetings

The details of the general meetings held during the financial year under review are given below:

SI. No. Type of Meeting Date and Place Special / Ordinary resolutions
(Annual / Extra- passed
Ordinary)
1. Extraordinary General Date — April 5, 2023 To approve and issue non-convertible
Meeting Place — B-17, 4th Floor, Art | debentures (NCD) on a private
Guild House, Phoenix placement basis for an aggregate
Market City, Kurla West, amount up to Rs.200 Crore.
Mumbai 400070,
Maharashtra.
2. Extraordinary General Date — June 8, 2023 To approve and issue non-convertible
Meeting Place — B-17, 4th Floor, Art | debentures (NCD) on a private

Guild House, Phoenix
Market City, Kurla West,
Mumbai 400070,
Maharashtra.

placement basis for an aggregate
amount up to Rs.500 Crore.

To approve alteration of Article of
Association of the Company.

To alter Memorandum of Association
of the Company.
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3. Annual General Meeting | Date — August 24, 2023
Place - B-17, 4th Floor, Art
Guild House, Phoenix
Market City, Kurla West,
Mumbai 400070,
Maharashtra.

An ordinary resolution was passed to
approve & adopt Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023,
together with the reports of the board
of directors and the auditors thereon

An ordinary resolution was passed to
approve appointment of M/s. SR.
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered
Accountants as Statutory Auditors as
the joint auditors of the Company and
to fix their remuneration.

4) Details of non-compliance with requirements of Companies Act, 2013:

There were no default/non-compliance with requirement of Companies Act, 2013 including accounting

and secretarial standards during the financial year under review.

5) Details of Debenture Trustee:

The Company has appointed Beacon Trusteeship Limited as the debenture trustee acting for the benefit

of the Debenture Holders.

Address: 7 A&B, Siddhivinayak Chambers, Gandhi Nager Opp. MIG Cricket Club, Bandra (East), Mumbai

400051.

Website: https://beacontrustee.co.in
Email Id: compliance@beacontrustee.co.in
Contact Person: Mr. Kaustubh Kulkarni
Tel: 022-26558759

6) Details of penalties and strictures:

During the financial year under review, there were no penalties or stricture imposed on the Company by

the Reserve Bank of India or any other statutory authority.
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ANNEXURE Il
Management Discussion & Analysis
MACROECONOMIC OVERVIEW

The Indian economy exhibited strong resilience during FY 2023-24, in the face of headwinds from prolonged
geopolitical tensions and volatile global financial markets. The combination of a sustained anti-inflationary
monetary policy stance and proactive supply management measures resulted in headline inflation remaining
largely within the tolerance band. Monetary and credit conditions evolved in line with the monetary policy
stance. Within the government commitment to prudent fiscal position, emphasis was laid on capital spending
and infrastructure.

India’s Economic Resilience Amidst Global Challenges: India’s economy showed remarkable resilience in
a dynamic year marked by uncertain global landscape with geopolitical tensions, alongside the national
election activity. Despite challenges, the Indian economy expanded robustly in FY 2023-24, achieving a real
GDP growth rate of 7.6 per cent1, up from 7.0 per cent the previous year. This marks the third consecutive
year of growth at or above 7 per cent, underscoring its robust economic trajectory. Investment, particularly
buoyed by government expenditure on infrastructure, drove domestic demand, as evidenced by a notable
increase in gross fixed capital formation (GFCF) to 10.2 per cent1 in FY 2023-24 from 6.6 per cent in FY 2022-
23. Meanwhile, growth in private consumption demand moderated to 3.0 per cent1, down from 6.8 per cent
in previous year.

Inflation Trends and Monetary Policy: Inflationary pressures moderated during FY 2023-24, influenced by
calibrated monetary tightening, easing input costs and effective supply management measures. Headline
inflation declined to 5.4 per cent1 during FY 2023-24 from previous year's 6.7 per cent, largely driven by a
decrease in core inflation (CPI excluding food and fuel) to 4.3 per cent1 from 6.1 per cent. In light of the
evolving growth and inflation dynamics, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) maintained the policy repo
rate at 6.50 percent during FY 2023-24 and continued with a stance of withdrawal of accommodation, aimed
at bringing inflation closer to the 4% target while supporting economic growth.

Government Fiscal Performance: The Central government successfully maintained the path of fiscal
consolidation in 2023-24. The gross fiscal deficit improved to 5.9 percent1 of GDP in FY 2023-24 from 6.4
percent in the previous year. This achievement was bolstered by disciplined revenue spending growth at 2.5
percent1, alongside robust double-digit growth in capital expenditure for the fourth consecutive year.
Buoyant revenues played a pivotal role, with gross tax revenues reaching 11.7 percent of GDP1 in FY 2023-
24, marking their highest level since FY 2008-09, driven by strong income tax and GST collections.

Global trade: India's merchandise exports declined in FY 2023-24, largely influenced by the global downturn
in trade volume amid uncertain global landscape with geopolitical tensions. During the year, merchandise
exports contracted by 3.1 percent1 in US dollar terms, accompanied by a 5.7 percent1 decrease in imports.
As a result, India's merchandise trade deficit narrowed to US$ 238.3 billion1 in 2023-24 from US$ 264.9 billion
in the previous year.

Global capital flows: Capital inflows remained robust in FY 2023-24, driven by strong economic growth and

improving domestic macroeconomic conditions. Net foreign portfolio investment (FPI) flows reached US$
41.6 billion in FY 2023-24, marking the second highest level since FY 2014-15 (US$ 45.1 billion). India received
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the highest net FPI inflows amongst Emerging Market Economy (EME) peers during the year. Gross foreign
direct investment (FDI) flows remained resilient at US$ 71.0 billion, similar to the US$ 71.4 billion recorded in
the previous year. However, net FDI flows moderated to US$ 10.6 billion from US$ 28.0 billion, largely due to
higher repatriation.

Capital markets: The Indian domestic equity market saw significant milestone in FY 2023-24, surpassing the
US$ 4 trillion market capitalisation mark and taking position as the world's fifth largest stock market. In the
primary equity market segment, mobilisation through preferential allotments and Qualified Institutional
Placements (QIPs) rose to X1.1 lakh crore1 in FY 2023-24 from 0.9 lakh crore the previous year. Fundraising
through IPOs, follow-on public offers (FPOs) and rights issues also increased to 0.8 lakh crore1 from 0.7
lakh crore. The SME segment showed notable increase, with 197 SME IPOs and FPOs raising %6,122 crorel in
FY 2023-24, compared to 125 issues raising 2,333 crore in the preceding year.

Economic Overview - High Frequency Indicators - Growth Rate

(Per cent, y-o0-y)

2022-23 2023-24
Indicators Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 Qi Q2 Q3 Q4
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Urban Demand
Automobiles Sales 51.8 16.9 10.0 8.7 12.2 0.9 20.6 2157
Passenger Vehicles Sales 33.9 34.4 214 10.7 9.5 &7/ 8.7 10.8
Agriculture / Rural Demand
Domestic Sales of Tractors 15.8 4.8 10.5 18.7 -1.9 -5.8 -4.9 -22.9
Two-Wheeler Sales 55.0 13.6 72 6.7 12 =1.6 226 249
Three-Wheeler Sales 2113 712 68.2 84.4 89.6 62.2 35.2 7.3
Transport
Vahan Total Registration ’ 61.3 1.4 19.0 15.1 6.0 13.9 10.7 10.8
Domestic Air Passenger Traffic 206.2 64.1 18.5 52.2 191 23.0 9.1 5.2
International Air Passenger Traffic . 4033 263.9 98.1 93.6 35.0 21.6 18.5 17.0
Domestic Air Cargo 32.1 10.0 -3 0.5 -1.0 -1.0 9.5 10.0
International Air Cargo -1.7 -3.8 -11 -2.8 0.1 3.7 10.7 239
Freight Traffic Net Tonne Kilometre® 19.4 14.5 667 4.7 -35 0.9 4.6
Freight Traffic Freight Originating* 11.8 8.4 3.2 -33.5 it 4.8 6.4 8.2
Port Cargo 9.3 12.8 5.2 8.6 0.8 29 10.0 2]
Domestic Trade
GST E-way Bill 456 20.1 17.2 18.1 15.8 15.0 17 16.3
GST E-way Bill Intra-State 46.6 23.8 23.6 223 19.3 18.4 221 18.2
GST E-way Bill Inter-State 43.8 14.6 74 114 10.0 9.3 8.6 131
GST Revenue 34.5 27.5 14.2 12.6 1.6 10.6 12.9 1.3
Construction
Steel Consumption 10.0 14.3 16.1 12.9 11.1 16.8 11.6 8.6
Cement Production 17.3 4.9 10.1 3.8 12:7 10.3 51 8.5

Tourism and Hospitality
Hotel Occupancy Rate 64.7 62.2 65.0 66.3 63.0 60.9 65.2 67.8
Foreign Tourist Arrivals* 895.4 121.0

38.2 17.5 14.0 13.1

<—— Contraction Expansion —— >
@: Data for Q3:2023-24 relate to October 2023. *: Data for Q4:2023-24 are for January-February 2024. - Not available.

Source: Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM); Tractor and Mechanization Association; Vahan Registration Portal; Airports
Authority of India; Ministry of Railways, Gol; Indian Ports Association; Goods and Services Tax Network (GSTN); Joint Plant Committee, Office

of Economic Adviser, NSO; Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Gol; HVS Anarock, and Ministry of Tourism, Gol.
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Outlook for 2024-25: The outlook for the Indian economy remains bright, underpinned by a sustained
strengthening of macroeconomic fundamentals, robust financial and corporate sectors and a resilient
external sector. The government's continued thrust on capex while pursuing fiscal consolidation and
consumer and business optimism augur well for investment and consumption demand. RBI estimates for real
GDP growth for FY 2024-25 is projected at 7.0 per cent1, CPl inflation for FY 2024-25 is projected at 4.5 per
cent'

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Banking Sector: The banking sector in India continued its transformative journey, leveraging technology
and regulatory reforms to expand access and efficiency.

Credit growth in FY24, for the Scheduled Commercial Banks (SCBs) retained a double-digit growth and credit
expanded by 16.3 per cent1 as on March 22, 2024 on top of 15.0 per cent in previous year. Private Banks
growth accelerated to 19.2 per cent1 as on March 22, 2024 from 17.8 per cent a year ago. Bank credit growth
to non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) slowed to 15.3 per cent1 year on year in March 2024, against
29.9 per cent1 a year ago, partly driven by increase in risk weights for bank exposure to NBFCs in November
2023.

SCBs asset quality improved with gross non-performing assets (GNPA) ratio at a multi-year low of 2.8 per
cent (vs. 3.9% as at March 2023)2 and the net non-performing assets (NNPA) ratio at 0.6 per cent (vs. 1.0%
as at March 2023)2 at end-March 2024. The improvement in asset quality was coupled with significant
milestone for the banking sector in terms of profitability also. For the first time, the banking sector's net profit
crossed Rs 3 lakh crore7 in FY24. The net profit of listed public and private sector banks rose 39% to Rs 3.1
lakh crore from Rs 2.2 lakh crore in FY 2022-23.

CRISIL expects credit growth for banks to remain healthy in 2025 at ~14%b5.

NBFC Lending: Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) are a critical constituent of the Indian financial
system and continued to play a critical role in credit intermediation to underserved segments of the economy,
complementing the efforts of traditional banking and financial institutions. Regulatory enhancements aimed
at strengthening governance and risk management frameworks further underscored the sector's
commitment to sustainable growth and financial inclusion.

NBFCs continue to deliver healthy performance, with gross advances growing by 185 per cent during 2023-
24, return on assets (RoA) at 3.3 per cent2 and CRAR at 26.6 per cent2 at end-March 2024. NBFCs have
demonstrated sustainable improvement in asset quality with GNPAs declining from 6.3 per cent1 of gross
advances as on March 31, 2022 to 5.0 per cent1 as on March 31, 2023 and further to 4.0 per cent2 as on
March 31, 2024. The improvement in asset quality is despite implementation of marking days-past-due (dpd)
on a daily basis in September 2022.

CRISIL expects growth in assets under management for NBFCs to remain strong at 15-17%5 in 2025, primarily

driven by steady growth in secured segments while regulatory measures curtailing growth rate of the
unsecured loan book.
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MSME Lending: The MSME sector remains pivotal to the India economy, contributing over 30% to GDP and
40% to exports8. Considering the significance, increasing the flow of credit to the MSMEs has been a policy
priority of the Reserve Bank and the Government of India. In Union Budget 2023-24, the government
announced the revamping of credit guarantee scheme for micro and small enterprises with effect from April
1, 2023, with an infusion of 39,000 crore to the corpus to enable additional collateral-free guaranteed credit
of 2 lakh crore. Besides, the limit on ceiling for guarantees has been enhanced from %2 crore to X5 crore.
This supported the increase in bank credit to micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs) to remain robust
at 19 per cent6 in 2024.

CRISIL expects growth in the bank credit to MSME segment (~16%6 of overall credit) to continue at double-
digit pace, estimated at ~15%6 in 2025. The growth in MSME segment is expected to be supported by a
revival in downstream capex, the role of MSMEs in the central government’'s Atmanirbhar Bharat initiative
and benefits accruing from the Productivity-Linked Incentive scheme. Also, with greater formalisation of the
sector including improving digital public infrastructure, the addressable base of MSMEs for formal credit has
been expanding continuously.

Profectus is poised suitably to take advantage of this multi-year opportunity and continue its commitment
to be a trusted partner-in-growth to MSMEs.

COMPANY AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

In line with our strategic objectives, Profectus Capital has continued its steadfast commitment of delivering
technology enabled tailored financial solutions to small and medium businesses and become their preferred
partner-in-progress. The Company's differentiated approach to MSME lending, characterized by cluster-
focus and prudent credit assessment, enabled us to navigate evolving market dynamics while maintaining
robust asset quality.

In line with cluster-approach, your Company covers 28 key industrial locations with branches in states of
Maharashtra (Mumbai, Pune, Kolhapur, Nagpur, Nashik), Gujarat (Ahmedabad, Surat, Rajkot, Vadodara, Vapi),
Madhya Pradesh (Indore, Bhopal), Rajasthan (Jaipur), Delhi, Haryana (Panchkula, Gurugram), West Bengal
(Kolkata), Telangana (Hyderabad), Andhra Pradesh (Vijayawada, Vishakhapatnam), Tamil Nadu (Chennai,
Madurai, Salem, Coimbatore), Karnataka (Bengaluru), Assam (Guwahati), Chhattisgarh (Raipur) and Punjab
(Ludhiana).

Your Company crossed a significant milestone in FY 2023-24 with Assets under Management (AUM) crossed
¥ 3,000 crore (gross AUM of X 3,070 crore as at 31 March 2024) with profit after tax (PAT) of X 48 crore (60
per-cent y-o-y growth). In recognition of the performance, your Company was declared runner-up in mid
layer NBFC class for the ‘Outstanding Financial Performance’ category at the 18th Annual Summit & Awards
on Banking and Financial Sector Lending Companies by ASSOCHAM.

As we accelerate our growth and continue to expand across our focus markets, we continue to strengthen

our team. During the year, we onboarded a mix of seasoned professionals and fresh candidates taking the
overall team strength to 746 as at 31 March 2024 from 595 as at 31 March 2023.
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Some of the key highlights of the business and performance in FY 2023-24 were:
Asset Growth | Sustainable & Balanced Portfolio strategy:

e Profectus Capital continued to uphold a strategy of sustainable growth with product diversification
and geographic distribution, effectively managing risks within prudent thresholds. The Asset Under
Management (AUM) of the Company showed a growth of 22% to 33,070 crore as on March 31, 2024
from 2,522 crore as on March 31, 2023.

e As of 31 March 2024, AUM is distributed amongst financing segments/solutions with contribution
from Enterprise Mortgage Loan at 36%, School Funding at 24%, Equipment Funding at 17%, Supply
Chain Finance at 13% and NBFC Funding at 10%.

e In terms of geographical diversification, the AUM exposure in top state is 21% and the exposure to
the next five states is 47%.

e Cluster-focus is a cornerstone of Profectus portfolio growth and risk management. The AUM
exposure to the largest cluster (Schools) is 24% and to the next five clusters (Engineering and
Machine tools, Pharma and Healthcare, Printing and Packaging, Plastics and Chemicals, Home
Textiles and Ready Made Garments) is 40%.

Asset Quality | Persistent Emphasis on Risk Management:

e At Profectus, a strong commitment to risk management is ingrained in the core values. We have
continued to strengthen the risk management framework, ensuring optimal portfolio quality.

e Focus on risk management is evident in the healthy asset quality metrics maintained in a challenging
economic environment with GNPA% and NNPA% at 1.38% and 0.96% at 31 March 2024.

e Maintaining a robust overall collection efficiency of 98% throughout FY 2023-24 underscores
dedication to sound risk practices.

Earnings & Profitability | Enhanced Operating Efficiency:

e The total revenue for the Company increased by 47% to 3403 crore for the year ended March 31,
2024 as compared to X273 crore for year ended March 31, 2023.

e Investments in the team and infrastructure in the initial phases of the Company combined with
sustained focus on cost management continue to deliver improvements in operating efficiency.

e This is reflected in the reduction of cost-to-income ratio from 86% in FY 2021-22 to 70% in FY 2022-
23 and further to 65% in FY 2023-24, underscoring potential for significant operating leverage with
scale-up.

e The Company delivered significant improvement in profit metrics with profit after tax (PAT)
increasing by 60% in FY 2023-24 to %48 crore from %30 crore in FY 2022-23.

e Return on Net Worth increased from 3.5% in FY 2022-23 to 4.4% in FY2023-24

Capitalisation & Liquidity | Prudent Treasury Management:

e Profectus has effectively managed asset liability management (ALM) through strategic initiatives
such as raising long-term borrowings and maintaining a balanced mix of funding sources.

e The Company remains committed to diversifying the liability profile, as demonstrated by lender base
of 30+ financial institutions including leading public sector banks, private sector banks, NBFCs and
Small Finance Banks.
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e Furthermore, the external credit rating of the Company has been consistently upgraded over the last
5 years. In October 2023, CARE Ratings upgraded the long-term credit rating of the Company to
‘CARE A / Stable’ ("A" with Stable Outlook). CRISIL has outstanding credit rating of ‘CRISIL A- /
Positive’ ("A” Minus with Positive Outlook) for long term and ‘CRISIL A1’ for short term.

e The Company continued to maintain strong capitalisation levels with Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
at 39.5%, significantly higher than the minimum regulatory requirement of 15%. The Company's
debt-equity ratio stood at 1.78 as on March 31, 2024.

Technology | Continued Technology Focus:

e Technology continues to define Profectus identity as a digitally-forward organization.

e Company's focus remains on achieving robust performance at scale by providing requisite tools to
every employee to assist in their individual performance, while maintaining strict compliance with all
regulatory and IT security requirements.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Profectus is operating in dynamic and evolving financial services landscape and face range of opportunities
and threats.

Opportunities: Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSMEs) continue to be the backbone of India’'s
growing economy, contributing approximately 30% to the GDP9. The outlook for MSMEs continue to be
significantly promising underscored by their crucial role in the India’s economy.

The positive outlook for MSMEs will continue to provide significant opportunity to NBFCs to enhance
availability of formal credit to MSMEs driven by: (a.) significant underserved credit demand, (b.) continued
emphasis of Government in promoting MSME by rolling out various schemes and initiatives and; (c.)
increasing formalization of MSMEs enabled by initiatives like GST, Udyam registration, Account Aggregator,
digital payments, etc. Profectus is poised and determined to tap into this opportunity and enable MSMEs to
make their contribution towards India’ s target of USD 5 trillion economy.

Threats: Economic challenges due to uncertain geopolitical environment in terms of slowdown in global
growth and inflationary pressures impacting cost of borrowing, liquidity and private investment pose as key
potential threat.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

As an NBFC specializing in MSME lending in the dynamic Indian Financial Services market, we recognize and
actively manage various risks that could impact our operations and financial performance. Understanding
these risks allows us to proactively mitigate them and enhance our resilience. Key risks and concerns include:

1. Credit Risk: The primary risk inherent in our business is credit risk, stemming from the possibility of
borrower default due to factors such as economic downturns, industry-specific challenges, or individual
financial distress. We mitigate this risk through stringent credit assessment & approval processes, ongoing
monitoring of borrower financial health and diversification of our loan portfolio across products, sectors and
geographies. We continuously monitor asset quality metrics such as Gross Non-Performing Assets and
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regularly review our collection strategies to minimize delinquencies. The Board of Directors via the Risk
Management Committee provides overall guidance and oversight for management of Credit Risk.

2. Market & Liquidity Risk: Given the volatile economic environment and regulatory changes, we face
market risks including interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Fluctuations in interest rates can impact our
borrowing costs and margins, while liquidity risk could arise from mismatches in cash flows. We manage
these risks through prudent asset-liability management (ALM) practices, maintaining adequate liquidity
buffers and remain compliant with the regulatory requirements. The Board of Directors via the Asset Liability
Committee and the Borrowing Committee provides overall guidance and oversight for management of
Market and Liquidity Risk.

3. Capital Adequacy and Funding Risks: Maintaining adequate capital levels to support our growth and
regulatory requirements is essential. Funding risks, including access to diversified funding sources and cost
of funds, are closely monitored. We optimize our capital structure through prudent financial planning and
maintaining strong relationships with diversified pool of funding partners.

4. Operational Risk: Operational disruptions, including technological failures, cybersecurity threats and
regulatory compliance failures, pose significant risks to our business continuity and reputation. We address
these risks by investing in robust IT infrastructure, conducting regular audits and implementing stringent
internal controls. The Core systems and platform are implemented on the cloud allowing scalability for Peak
Load and High availability. Disaster Recovery is implemented to ensure contingency and continuity for all the
critical applications. The Board of Directors has constituted an IT Strategy Committee to provide overall
guidance and oversight.

5. Regulatory and Compliance Risk: The regulatory landscape in the financial sector, especially concerning
NBFCs, continues to evolve. Non-compliance with regulatory requirements could lead to penalties,
reputational damage and/or operational constraints. We stay compliant through continuous monitoring of
regulatory changes, proactive engagement with regulators, independent audits and adherence to best
practices in governance and compliance.

6. Economic and Industry Risks: The MSME sector is susceptible to broader economic trends and sector-
specific challenges. Factors such as changes in government policies, industry downturns, or global economic
shocks could impact the overall segments and creditworthiness of our borrowers. The senior management
keeps an oversight on the macro-economic situation and adapt the strategies accordingly.

In conclusion, navigating these risks is integral to our operations and the current risk management framework
is commensurate with our size, nature and operations. Our proactive approach to risk identification,
assessment and mitigation enables us to mitigate uncertainties and capitalize on opportunities in the
evolving MSME lending landscape in India. We also remain committed to continuously enhance our risk
management framework, ensuring sustainable growth and delivering value to our stakeholders.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
Effective internal control systems are foundational to our operations as an NBFC focused on MSME lending
in India. These systems are designed to mitigate risks and ensure accuracy in financial reporting. We

continuously evaluate and enhance our internal controls to maintain efficiency and compliance. Key aspects
of our internal control framework include:
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1. Risk-Based Approach: We adopt a risk-based approach to internal control, identifying and prioritizing
areas of significant risk to our operations. This proactive stance allows us to implement controls tailored to
specific risks associated with MSME lending.

2. Control Environment: A robust control environment is maintained through clear policies, procedures and
guidelines that define roles, responsibilities and authorities across the organization. This framework promotes
accountability and transparency in our operations.

3. Training and Awareness: Continuous training programs are conducted to enhance awareness among
employees about the importance of internal controls and their roles in maintaining a strong control
environment. This ensures that our workforce remains vigilant and compliant with internal policies.

4. Internal Audit and Monitoring: An independent internal audit firm is appointed to assess and improve
the effectiveness of controls and processes; and compliance with policies, plans and statutory requirements.
Their findings and recommendations are reviewed by the Audit Committee, guiding continuous
improvements and corrective actions.

5. Compliance and Regulatory Adherence: We adhere strictly to regulatory requirements and industry
standards. As per the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, our Company conducts secretarial audit
performed by an independent Practicing Company Secretary. The Secretarial Audit Report for the fiscal year
ending March 31, 2024, confirms that there were no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks, or
disclaimers.

6. Technology and Information Security Controls: Given the importance of technology in our operations,
we invest in robust IT systems and infrastructure. Information security measures (e.g. access rights) are
implemented to protect confidential data and mitigate cyber threats.

7. Governance and Oversight: The Board of Directors and senior management provide oversight and
guidance on internal control matters. The senior management diligently reviews the findings and
recommendations from internal auditors, statutory auditors, secretarial auditors and IT audit teams. This
process ensures ongoing monitoring and enhancement of internal controls, keeping pace with our
organization's growth trajectory, increasing operational complexity and evolving statutory requirements.

In conclusion, our internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of operational objectives, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with laws and
regulations. We are committed to ongoing enhancement of these systems to adapt to changing business
dynamics, emerging trends and regulatory developments in the MSME lending sector.

PLANS FOR 2024-2025

Looking forward, Profectus remains poised to capitalize on emerging opportunities within the MSME
segment, underpinned by our unwavering focus on prudent risk management, regulatory compliance and
sustainable growth.

In 2024-25 our strategic focus will be on consolidating and capitalising on the substantial investments made

in people, processes, technology and distribution network; and continue to deliver on our vision to be the
preferred partner-in-progress to small and medium businesses.
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Our long-term mission is to provide sustainable and outstanding value to all stakeholders through innovative,
values-driven, high quality service delivery and profitable business practices. With strong tailwinds and
strategic elements in place, we are confident to deliver on our mission and create a world-class NBFC.
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ANNEXURE IV

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

UDIN: L2023MH013700
To,
The Members,
Profectus Capital Private Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Profectus Capital Private Limited
(U65999MH2017PTC295967) (hereinafter called 'the Company’), a company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 2013 and registered with the Reserve Bank of India as NBFCs-Middle Layer (NBFCs-ML).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31t March, 2024
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2024 according to the provisions
of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder, as amended;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA") and rule made thereunder;

(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas—Directtnvestment—and-External-Commercial
(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, as amended

and to the extend applicable;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board
of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
Not applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;
Not applicable

(vi) The Master Directions prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as applicable to the Company
from time to time, including:

(@) Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-

Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016/
Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company - Scale Based
Regulation) Directions, 2023;

(b) Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016

/ Master Direction - Reserve Bank of India (Filing of Supervisory Returns) Directions — 2024;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(i)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s);

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. as mentioned above, to the extent applicable.
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We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Director.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance in most cases and consents for convening the meetings
at a shorter notice were obtained in a few instances and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

As per the Minutes, all decision were unanimously approved by the Directors and there were no
dissenting members’ views which were required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with
the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has:

1. Allotted of 3,500 senior, secured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
1,00,000/- each at par on private placement basis on 12 April, 2023.

2. Allotted of 1450 senior, secured, listed, rated, redeemable, non-convertible debentures of Rs.
1,00,000/- each at par on private placement basis on 19™ May, 2023.

3. Altered the Articles of Association pursuant to special resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the members of the Company held on 8™ June,
2023.

4. Amended Clause Ill (A) — main object clause of the Memorandum of Association pursuant to special
resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting of the
members of the Company held on 8™ June, 2023.

5. Appointed M/s. S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, as the Joint
Auditors of the Company pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder and RBI vide Circular Ref.No.DoS.CO.ARG/SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated April 27,
2021 and to fix their remuneration at the Annual General Meeting held on 24™ August, 2023 for a
period of three year (financial 2023-24 to financial 2025-26).

For Purwar & Purwar Associates LLP

Company Secretaries

[Unique Identification Code: L2023MH013700]
[PR: 3174/2023]

Pradeep Kumar Purwar

Designated Partner
Place: Thane FCS No. 5769
Date: 23 May 2023 CoP No. 5918
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12th Floor, The Ruby National Insurance Building,
29, Senapati Bapat Marg 2™ floor, 204, D.N. Road,
Dadar (West), Mumbai — 400 028 Fort, Mumbai — 400 001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Profectus Capital Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Profectus Capital Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(Fthe Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our

audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
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procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters

J How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1. Impairment of loans (expected credit losses) (refer note 1.2, 1.18 and 8 to the financial

statements)

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
109 Financial Instruments requires the
Company to provide for impairment of its
loans using the expected credit loss
(ECL) approach. ECL involves an
estimation of probability weighted loss
on financial instruments over their life,
considering reasonable and supportable
information about past events, current
conditions, and forecasts of future
economic conditions and other factors
which could impact the credit quality of
the Company’s loans.
In the process, a significant degree of
judgement and estimates have been
applied by the management for:
Staging of loans (i.e. classification in
‘significant increase in credit risk’
(*SICR’) and ‘default’ categories)
based on past due status or qualitative
assessment;
Grouping of borrowers (retail loan
portfolio) based on homogeneity for
estimating probability of default
(‘PD’), loss given default (‘LGD")
and exposure at default ("EAD") on a
collective basis;
Estimation of losses for loan products
with no/ minimal historical defaults;
Determining macro-economic and
other factors impacting credit quality
of loans.
In view of the high degree of
management’s judgement involved in
estimation of ECL and the overall
significance of the impairment loss
allowance to the financial statements, it is
considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

Read and assessed the Company’s accounting
policy for impairment of financial assets and their
compliance with Ind AS 109 and the governance
framework approved by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (“RBI™)
guidelines issued on March 13, 2020.

Evaluated reasonableness of management estimates
by understanding the process of ECL estimation
and related assumptions and tested the controls
around extraction, validation and computation of
input data used.

Tested the assumptions used by the Company for
staging of loan portfolio into various categories and
default buckets for determining the Probability of
Default (PD) and Loss Given Default (LGD) rates.

Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based on
their past due status. Tested samples of performing
(stage 1) loans to assess whether any loss indicators
were present requiring them to be classified under
stage 2 or 3 as per the requirements of Ind AS 109.

Involved internal specialist for testing of the ECL
model and computation, including factors that
affect the PD, LGD and EAD considering various
forward looking. micro and macro-economic
factors. Performed procedures to test the inputs
used in the ECL computation, on a sample basis.

Tested assumptions used by the management in
determining the overlay for macro-economic and
other factors.

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of computation of
ECL provision performed by the Company.

Assessed adequacy of disclosures included in the
financial statements in respect of expected credit
losses.

IT systems and controls

The financial accounting and reporting
systems of the Company are
fundamentally reliant on IT systems and

Our audit procedures included the following:

The aspects covered in the assessment of IT General
Controls comprised: (i) User Access Management;
(ii) Program Change Management; (iii) Other
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

IT controls to process significant related ITGCs, including audit trail — to understand
transaction volumes. the design and test the operating effectiveness of
Automated accounting procedures and IT such controls in respect of information systems that
environment controls, which include IT are important to financial reporting (“in-scope
governance, general IT controls over applications™).

program development and changes,
access to programs and data and IT
operations, are required to be designed
and to operate effectively to ensure
accurate financial reporting. Any gaps in | ® Tested the periodic review of access rights,

* Tested the changes that were made to the in-scope
applications during the audit period to assess
changes that have impact on financial reporting.

the IT control environment could result in inspected requests of changes to systems for
a material misstatement of the financial appropriate approval and authorization.

accounting and reporting records. o Performed tests of controls (including other
Therefore, due to the pervasive nature compensatory controls, wherever applicable) on the
and complexity of the IT environment, IT application controls and IT dependent manual
the assessment of the general IT controls controls in the system.

and the application controls specific to
the accounting and preparation of the
financial information is considered to be
a key audit matter.

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficiencies were
identified and, where necessary, extended the scope
of our substantive audit procedures.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
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includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com any to
cease to continue as a going concerrn.
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5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the vear ended March 31, 2023, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by one of the joint statutory auditor. Batliboi & Purchit, Chartered
Accountants, who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements vide their report dated May 22,
2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 9.6. below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

LFE]

4. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2013, as amended;
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5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

7. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the provisions of section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.;

8. The medification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2.2. above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
9.6. below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

9. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

4. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 65(i) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 65(ii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
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believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

L

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

6. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature was not maintained
throughout the year for direct changes to data when using certain access ri ghts, as described
in note 76 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the
accounting software.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For Batliboi & Purohit

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm registration number: 101048W
.\ %ﬂﬁ\\//‘& ,

per Viren H. Mehta per Janak Mehta

Partner Partner

Membership No.: 048749 Membership No.: 116976

UDIN: 24048749BKFGYV 1405 UDIN: 24116976 BKGWSV3247
London Mumbai
May 23, 2024 May 23, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our Report of even date

Re: Profectus Capital Private Limited

(1)

(ii)

(1i1)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

1. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment by which all Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner
over a period of 3 years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company
and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The Company’s business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks and financial
institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks and
financial institutions are in agreement with the audited/ unaudited books of account of
the Company.

The Company’s principal business is to give loans and is a registered NBFC,
accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(a) is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the investments made, security given and the terms and conditions of
the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and guarantees to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial
to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated by the Company. Having regard to
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vi1)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practicable to furnish entity-wise
details of amount, due date for repayment or receipt and the extent of delay in this report
(as suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India for reporting under this clause), in respect of loans and advances
which were not repaid / paid when they were due or were repaid / paid with a delay, in
the normal course of lending business. Further, except for 63 loans classified as credit
impaired (‘stage 3°) with aggregate exposure of principal and interest of Rs. 43 crores,
126 loans where credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition (‘stage
27) with aggregate exposure of principal and interest of Rs. 80 crores and 124 loans
where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition but have
some overdue of up to 30 days (stage 1°) with aggregate exposure of principal and
interest of Rs. 59 crores as at March 31, 2024, in respect of which the Company has
disclosed asset classification / staging in Note 41 to the financial statements in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, the parties in respect of 5,704 loans with aggregate exposure of
principal and interest of Rs. 2,537 crore are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated,
and are also regular in payment of interest, as applicable.

In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, as disclosed in Note 41 to the
financial statements, the total amount outstanding of loans classified as credit impaired
(“stage 3°) (including loans overdue for more than ninety days) as at March 31, 2024 is
Rs. 43 crores (63 loans). In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been
taken by the Company for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest.

The Company’s principal business is to give loans and is a registered NBFC,
accordingly, reporting under clause (iii)(e) is not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions
of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance.
income-tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information
and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax,
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(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

(b)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(a)

(b)

goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at March
31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

As informed, provision of sales tax, wealth tax, value added tax, excise duty and custom
duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as
income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the
purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-tetrm purposes by
the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer/further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report
on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit
and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

No fraud/material fraud by the Company or no fraud /material fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.
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(x11)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvil)

(xviii)

(xix)

(b)

(c)

(2)

(b)

(b)

(¢)

(d)

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a). (b) and (c¢) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has registered as required, under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve
Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) (c) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no other Companies part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year or the previous
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 44 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
A7 SN\ Page 11 of 14
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S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as
and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as
and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of
the said Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 58 to the financial statements,

(b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of with provisions of sub section (6) of
section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 58 to the financial

statements.
For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm registration number: 101048W
o %
\M A ,
per Viren H. Mehta per Janak Mehta
Partner Partner

Membership No.: 048749 Membership No.: 116976

UDIN: 24048749BKFGY V1405 UDIN: 24116976BKGWSV3247
London Mumbai
May 23, 2024 May 23, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PROFECTUS CAPITAL PRIVATE LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Profectus
Capital Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
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financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error ot fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For Batliboi & Purohit
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E/E300005 ICAI Firm registration number: 101048W

ey

per Janak Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 116976

per Viren H. Mehta
Partner
Membership No.: 048749

UDIN: 24048749BKFGYV 1405 UDIN: 24116976 BKGWSV3247
London Mumbai
May 23, 2024 May 23, 2024
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Profectus Capital Private Limited

Balance Sheet
os at March 31, 2024

Amauntin Rs. Lakhs

Sr. N Particulars Mates As Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A3SETS
i FINANCIAL ASSETS
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 3 11,718 12,502
(bl  Bank balances other than {a} above 4 31,486 24,016
{c}] Loans 5 269,221 2,45,326
(d) Invesiments 6 8,292 15,568
(e) Other financial assets 7 3,196 251
Total Financlal Assets 3,22.913 2,97,663
H. NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Current tax assets {net) 8 361 100
(bl Deferredtax assets (net) 9 122 298
{c} Property, plant and equipment 10 2,046 1371
(d) Intangible assets 10 111 137
(e} Intangible assets under development 104 35 -
{f) Other non-financial assets 11 487 373
Total Non-Financial Assets 3,162 2279
TOTAL ASSETS 226075 1.92.942
LIABIUTIES AND EQUITY
L FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{a) Payables
(i} Trade payables 12
- Total putstanding dues of micre enterprise and smatl enterprise 155 52
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise 738 813
and small enterprise
ib) Debt securities 13 28,461 19,908
{c) Borrowings other than debt securities 14 1,270,259 1,59,274
{d)  Other financial liabilties 15 9,823 8751
Total Financial Liabllities 2,00436 1,808,798
1.  NON-FINANCIAL {IABILITIES
{a) Current tax liabllities (Net) 16 56 [
{b) Provisions 17 1,050 1,137
{c) Other non-financial liablitres 13 4,106 3,681
Total Non-Financis| Llabilities 5,212 4,512
. EQUITY
{a} Equity share ¢capnal 19 73,700 73.700
{b) Other equity 20 37,727 32912
Total Equity 1,11.427 1.5622
TOTAL UABILITIES AND EQUITY 2.;5'072 E'alh"
Material Accounting Polices 182

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the financlal statements

As par our report of even dote

For S R Batllbol & Co. LLP

Chartered Actountants

ICA! Firm's Registration Number: 301003E/£300005

N\ walpdn

pee Viren H, Mehta
Portner
Membership No: 048749

Mace: London
Date 23 May, 2024

For Batlibol & Purohit
Chortered Accountonts
ICA! Firm's Registration No: 101048wW

a\—-\J;;

—>

per Janak Mahta
Portner
Membership No.: 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date 23 May, 2024

For and cn behalf of the Board of Directors of
Frofectus Capitas Private Limitea

Whole Time Director &

Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01827316

)
[Va¥

Sandip Parikh
Chref Financha! Officer

DIN: 05347739

Nitin rkar
Company Secretary




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended Morch 31, 2024

Amaunt In Rs. Lakhs

Sr. No. Particutars Nates For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

I Revenue from Operations

[a) Interest income 21 36,099 26,245

{h) Gain/loss on derecognition of financial instruments at amortised cost z1 2,128 .

{c} Fee and Commission Income 22 1,460 19

{d) Net gain an fair value changes 23 506 214
Total Revenue from Operations 40,193 27,27

. Other Income 24 76 28

1. Total Incoma (| +11) 40,269 27,306

. Expensas
[a) Finance Costs 25 18,260 10,362

L1} Impairment of Financial Instrumants 26 1,330 994
3] Employee benefit expenses 27 9,580 7,315
(d) Depreciation and amortisation 10 577 540
fe) Other expenses 28 4,073 3,094
Total Expansas 33,820 13,308
V. frofit before tax [Il1-V) 6,449 4,001
vl Tax Expenie
(a) Current tax 1,458 1,076
(b) Deforred tax [credit)/charge 175 (68}
Net tax expense 1,633 1,008
wvil. Profit for the year (V-V1) 4,816 1,993

vill.  Othar Comprehensive Income

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profil and loss

Remeasurement gain/{loss} on defined benefit plan {14) (54)
(i1 Income tax relating to items that will not ba reclassified 4 14
10 profit and loss
Subtetal {A) {10) (40}

8 {i) Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

- Fair Value of financial instruments through QCI - (28)
{11} income tax relating to items that wilt be reclassified to - 7
profit and loss
Subtctat (8) . (21)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (net of Income taxes} {A+B) {10) [63)
IN. Total Comprehenshve Income for tha yasr (nat of Income taxes) {V1I + VIII) 4,806 2912
X, Eaming Per Equity Share 29
(Face value of Rs 10 aach fully paid up)
Basle {In Rupees) 0.65 0.44
Diluted {In Rupees) 0.64 0.43
Material Accounting Policles 182

The accompanying notes form an integra) part of the financlal statements

As per our report of aven date

For § R Batfibol & Co. LLP For and on bahaif of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Profectus Capital Private Limited '
ICAI Firm's Reglstration Number: 301003E/E300005 f

. p =

per Viran H. Mehta
Partner
Membership No: 048749

Director

Chief Executive Officer DIN: 05347739
DIN: 01827316

Place: Landon

Date 23 May, 2024

For Batiibol & Purchi
Chortered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No: 101048W

= f W K

-~
per Janak Mehta = Sandip Parikh Nitin arkar
Partner Chief Finoncial Officer Company Secretary

Membership No,: 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date 23 May, 2024




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Amount i Rs. Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year snded
Macchal 2024 Machll2023
A._Cash Flow from Operating Actlvities
Net Prafit Before Tax 6,449 4,001
Adiusted for
Depreciation and Amortisation (Refer Note 10} 527 540
Impairment on financkal instruments 1030 702
Bad debtwritten off 300 251
Pravition for Gratuity 81 ca
Amortised Procesuna feet and DSA cammisson {2000 ura
Amaortised Finance Cost w05 322
Gain on derecognition of financial instrument at amortised cost 12,1281
IndAS adwstment for security daoosit 144 B8
Finance cost 17.010 10.107
Interest intome on loans 133.3421 {13.309)
Interest income an Nnad depos:s and investments (3.6841 12 113)
Net {raindloss on faie value changes 506} —_ 214
{20,613) (13,999)
Operating [Loss)/Profit batore Working Capital Changes {14,164) (#.998)
Adiusted for
Other financial assets (24.842) 95.000)
Cther non financial assets 1224} 147
Other fnancial kabktas 271 3623
Othes non fingncial babulitey JEN— | —_ 1774
{23,7157) (®9,545)
Cash Used in Operation {37,921) (99,544)
Taxes Paid (1,967 {8D3)
Interest Apceived 33.842 23.209
Interest Paid — (17010t — (10107}
14,865 12,399
Net Cash from / {usad In) Qparating Activitias {23,056) (87,148}
8. Cach Flow from Investing Activities
Purchasa of property, plant and equioment 231 {200
Puschase)/Sale of Current invattments INat) 2.202 16.45%5)
[ M of Fued its (Netl 17.4711 (23192
Interest on Faed deponits / investments 3,684 2113
Mat Cash generated from / (used In) Inrvesting Activities 3,773 (27,834)
€. Cash Flow from Finsasing Acthvities
Proceeds from Issue af Eauity Shares 26.99%
Proceeds from Term Loans 75.800 88.775
Repavments of Term Loans 76.6511 {22.6061
Proceeds from CC / OD factlities (Net} 17.818 21.901
Proceeds from non convertible debentures 4.950 2.000
Repavments of non convertinle debentures 12.3801 1.214)
Payrnent of Lease Liability [inctudiag Interest) (1,043} 84)
Net Cash generatad from / (used In) Financing Activitias 18494 119,977
Net increase / [decreasa) In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A +B +C) —llil ——lE
Cpening Balance af Cash snd Cash Eourvalents 12.502 2.504
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents [Refer Note 3) r———_ ————
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows"
Changes in Liabilities arising from financing activities
Paeticulars April 1, 2023 Cashflows. Others  March 31, Ml¢|
Borrowings 175182 19,315 223 198,720
Particuiars April 1,2022 Cashflows Others  Murch 1. 2023
Borrowings 84,889 43,856 437 1,79,182

Other columin includes the wHect of amortisation of borrowing cost and interest sccrued on borrowings

As per o report of even dote

For 5 R Bathboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Actountants

ICAI Firm's Registration Numbet: 301003E/£300005

per Viren H. Mehta
Pertner
Membership No: 048743

Place: London
Date 21 May, 2024

For Batlibol & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Rezistration No: 191048W

per Janak Mehta
Portner
Membershio No.: 116976

Place: Mumbai
Date - 23 May, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of D

Whole Time Director &
Chief Executive Officer
DIN: 01827316

'Samiip Parikh
Chief Financial Officer

|}
rectol
OIN: 05347739

¥

Nitin Panghriar
Company Secretory



Profectus Capital Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended Morch 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Sl no A lstued, Subseribad & Fully Pald Equity Shara apital

Partlculars Note Rs In Lakhs
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19 73,700
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 73,700
Balance as at March 31, 2022 61,672
Changes in equity share capital during the year 12,028
Bal as at March 33, 2023 73,700
$l. No. B, Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Comprehensive
Income
Statutory Reserve Securities Retained Earnings  Shere based Falr Valuation of
Premium fleserve payment reserve®  Investments st
Fvodt
Balance as 8t March 31, 2023 969 28,870 1,752 1,330 1 32,922
Profit for the year 4,316 4816
Other comprehensive income for the year -10 . -1 -11
Transferred to [ (from) 964 -964 -
Balance at at March 31, 2024 1,933 28,3870 5,594 1,330 32,727
Balance a5 at March 31, 2022 ara 13,899 - 602 1,330 21 15,019
Profit for the year 2,993 - 2,993
Premium en shares issued during the year 14971 5 14,971
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 40 -2 61
Transferred to / (from) 599 599
Balance as at March 3t, 2023 269 28,870 1,782 1,330 1 32,922

*Refer Note 32 on Share Based Payments.

As per our report of even date

For § R Batlibol & Co. Lip

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

-
per Viren H. Mehta
Portner

Membership No: 048749

Place: tondon
Date 13 May, 2024

For 8atlibol & Purohit
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101048W

Y

per Janak Mahta
Partner
Membership No.: 116976

~u

Place: Mumbai
Date : 23 May, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Profectus Capital Private Limited

P
J!'Jlrn-.'w
Chief Executive Officer DIN: 05347739
DIN: 01827316
Sandlp Parikh Nitin Panggriar
Chief Financiol Officer Compuny Secretary



Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)

for the

(A)

(B)

year ended March 31, 2024

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Profectus Capital Private Limited ('the Company'), is a private limited company, domiciled in India,
incorporated on June 9, 2017 with the Registrar of Companies ('"RoC’), Mumbai, Maharashtra, under
the provisions of Companies Act 2013. The Company is a non-deposit taking non-banking financial
company {'NBFC’) registered with Reserve Bank of India under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 with effect from September 25, 2017. The Company is primarily engaged in lending
and related activities. The Company is a subsidiary of ACTIS PC Investment {Mauritius) Limited and
the Actis Global 4 LP is the ultimate holding company of Profectus Capital Private Limited.

The Company’s registered office is at B-17, 4™ Floor, Art Guild House, Phoenix Market City, Kurla
West, Mumbai - 400070. The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a
resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 23, 2024.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standasds (“Ind
AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™) read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and presentation
requirements of Division 111 of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable guidelines
issued by Reserve Bank of india {(“RBI").

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and share based payments which are measured
at fair values as explained in relevant accounting policies

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Presentation of Financial Statements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are
only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend
to settle on a net basis in all the following circumstances:

e The normal course of business

» The event of default

» The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and / or its counterparties.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months after the
reporting date (non—current) is presented separately.




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

Z. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(B) MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1. Presentation of Financial Statements {Continued)

11 Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
All amounts are rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

1.2 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets (including financial instruments received in settlement of erstwhile loan assets)
with the exception of loans, debt securities and deposits are initially recognised on the trade date,
i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Loans are recognised when fund transfer is initiated or disbursement cheque is issued to the
customer, The Company recognises debt securities and deposits when funds are received by the
Company.

All financial assets are recagnised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets as
appropriate. Transaction costs and revenues directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss,

Subsequent Measurement

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. For purposes
of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

¢ Debtinstruments at amonrtised cost

e Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)

¢ Debtinstruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

e Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOQCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on t amount outstanding.




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Centinued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(8)
1.
1.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Presentation of Financial Statements (Continued)
Financial Instruments {Continued)

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The lasses arising from
impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments at FVTOC!

A ‘debt instrument’ is ciassified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a}  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and

b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI).

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each

reporting date at fair value,

Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCl). However, the

Company recognises interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or

loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to Profit and Loss.

Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as FVTQCI, is classified at FVTPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortised cost or FYTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so
reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting
mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are
classified as at FVTPL. For equity instruments other than held for trading, the Company has
irrevocable option to present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocable.

Where the Company classifies equity instruments as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. Equity instruments included within
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss,




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Coentinued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(B)

1.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Presentation of Financial Statements (Continued)
Financial Instruments {Continued)

Impaoirment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on the applicable financial

assets held under amortised cost, debt instruments measured at FVOCE and certain loan

commitments as per the Board approved palicy.

ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

e 12-month ECL, i.e. that result from those default events on the financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date, (referred to as Stage 1); or

s full lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all possible default events over the life of the
financial instrument,(referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

A loss allowance for full lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that

financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition (and consequently for credit

impaired financial assets). For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal

to the 12-month ECL.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. These are measured

as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Company under the

contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive arising from the weighting of

muitiple future economic scenarios, discounted at the asset’s EIR. For undrawn ioan commitments,

the ECL is the difference between the present value of the difference between the contractual cash

flows that are due to the Company if the holder of the commitment draws down the loan and the

cash flows that the Company expects to receive if the loan is drawn down,

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used in

measuring the amount of £CL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based on

12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default (PD) which affects

both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default:

e the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation te the Company;
or

¢ |f one facility of borrower is Stage 3, all the facilities of that borrower are to be treated as Stage




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
for the year ended March 31, 2024

(8)

1.2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Presentation of Financial Statements (Continued)
Financial Instruments (Continued)

The definition of default is appropriately tailored to reflect different characteristics of different types
of assets. When assessing if the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligation, the Company takes
into account both qualitative and quantitative indicators. The information assessed depends on the
type of the asset. Quantitative indicators, such as overdue status and non-payment on another
obligation of the same counterparty are key inputs in this analysis. The Company uses a variety of
sources of information to assess default which are either developed internally or obtained from
external sources. The definition of default is applied consistently to all financial instruments unless
information becomes available that demonstrates that another default definition is more
appropriate for a particular financial instrument.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Company monitors all financial assets, undrawn loan commitments that are subject to the
impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Company will measure the
loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The Company’s accounting policy is not
te use the practical expedient that financial assets with ‘low’ credit risk at the reporting date are
deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. As a result, the Company monitors all
financial assets, undrawn loan commitments that are subject to impairment for significant increase
in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since iniial
recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recegnition and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue
cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. Loan
accounts which meet the SICR criteria will be classified as Stage 3 even though they have not
breached the backstop indicator conditions. The Company does not have a policy for purchasing
credit impaired assets.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a
financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of
the financial asset. A modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows
either immediately or at a future date. The Company renegotiates loans to customers in financial
difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk of default.
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Modification and derecognition of financial assets {Continued)

A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to
pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already
happened and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in
maost of the cases include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash
flows of the loan (principal and interest  repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due
{principal and interest forgiveness}. Such accounts are classified as stage 2 or stage 3 immediately
upon such modification in the terms of the contract.

Not all changes in terms of loans are considered as renegotiation and changes in terms of a class of
obligors that are not overdue is hot considered as renegotiation and is not subjected to deterioration
in staging.

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows
expire (including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to
another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. if the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that
had been recognised in OCl and accumulated in equity is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, with the exception of equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, where the
cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCl is not subsequently reclassified to the Statement
of Profit and Loss.
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1.2 Financial Instruments {Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gainfloss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCl is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCl is allocated
between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This does not apply for equity investments designated
as measured at FVTOC], as the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCl is not subsequently
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering the financial asset {either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the
Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. Write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off.
Recoveries resulting from the Company’s enfarcement activities will be adjusted against impairment
loss.

Presentation of aflowance for ECL in the Statement of Bolonce Sheet

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the Statement of Balance Sheet as follows:

« for financial asset measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets;

for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the Statement of

Balance Sheet as the carrying amount is at fair value.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments

Classification as Debt or Equity

Debt and equity instruments, issued by the Company, are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition:

+ atfair value through profit or loss,

* Loans and borrowings,

* Payables, or

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, are recognised net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial
liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
+ Financial liabilities at amortized cost; and

¢ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Loans and Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

The Company de-recognises financial liabilities when and only when, the Company's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability de-recognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet,
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneousiy.
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Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments (other than equity investments in Subsidiaries, Joint
Ventures and Associates) and derivatives at fair values at each Balance Sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities (for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements) are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservabie

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit with
original maturity period of three months or less and shori-term highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) and Depreciation

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
property plant and equipment recognised as at 1st April 2019 measured as per the previous GAAP,
and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the praperty, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition or construction cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss. Cost comprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its location and working condition for its intended use,
including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of decommissioning. If significant parts of
an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items {major
components) of PPE. The cost of an item of PPE is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company in future periods and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into
operations, such as repair and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on Straight Line Method using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives as specified in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Company has used the following useful life to provide depreciation on its Property Plant and
Equipment.

5l. No. Class of Assets Estimated Useful Life
1 Computers 3 years

2 Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

3 Office Equipment 5 years

4 Vehicles 8 years

The estimated useful lives, method of depreciation and residual values of the Property Plant and
Equipment are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Property Plant and Equipment, individually costing less than Rupees five thousand, are fully
depreciated in the year on purchase. Depreciation on the Property Plant and Equipment
added/disposed off/discarded during the year is provided from/upto the date when added/disposed
off/discarded. Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of Property Plant and
Equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

ot
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Intangible assets and amortisation

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its
intangible Assets recognised as at 1st April 2019 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible assets.

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are stated at original cost net off tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated
amortisation and cumulative impairment losses. Direct expenses and other general overhead
expenses that are specifically attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are allocated and
capitalised as a part of the cost of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over the estimated useful life of 5 years. The
method of amortisation and useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the
effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
is less than it's carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If at
the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists,
the recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount.
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Leases

The Company as a lessee, recognises the right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease
commencement date. Initially the right-of-use asset is measured at cost which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an

estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or a change in the estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or a change in the assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. The right-of-use asset is measured by
applying cost model i.e, right-of-use asset at cost less accumulated depreciation /impairment losses
(Refer note no 31 for impairment).

The right-of-use assets are depreciated from the date of commencement of the lease on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. Carrying amount of lease liability is increased by interest on lease
liability and reduced by lease payments made.

Lease payments associated with following leases are recognised as expense on straight-line basis:

. Low value leases; and

. Leases which are short term

On Transition to Ind AS, the Company has applied modified retrospective approach and measured
right of use assets equal to lease liability.

Employee benefits

Short-term Empfoyee benefits

Liabilities for salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leave balance
in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period, are recognised as liabilities
(and expensed) and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The Company alsa recognises a liability and records an expense for bonuses (including performance-
linked bonuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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Employee benefits {Continued)

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company makes defined contributions to employee provident fund and employee pension
schemes administered by government organisations set up under the applicable statute. Defined
contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods.

Defined Benefit Plan

The obligation in respect of defined benefit plans, which covers Gratuity, which is provided for on

the basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of each financial year. Gratuity is funded with an

approved trust.

In respect of Gratuity being Post Retirement benefits, re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains

and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling {if applicable} and the return on plan assets

{excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the Balance Sheet with a charge or credit

recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement

recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and will not

be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service costs are recognised in the Statement of

Profit and Loss on the earlier of:

. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

. The date that the Company recognises related restricting costs

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under employee

benefit expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

. service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements); and

. net interest expense or income;

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate, which is

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or

surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited

to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or

reductions in the future contribution to the plans.

Other Long-Term Benefits

The expected costs of other long-term employee henefits such as long-term service incentive plan
benefits (not being share based payments) are accrued over the period of employment using the
same accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited
to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.
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Employee Share based payments

Empioyees {including members of the senior management) of the company receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payment transactions, where employees render services as consideration
of equity instruments {equity-settled transactions) Such transactions are accounted under the
requirements of Ind AS 102.

Equity settled transaction

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made using an appropriate valuation model. Such costs are then recognized, together with a
corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity , over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.

Foreign Currency Transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in foreign currencies, are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rate prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin
a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
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a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

g)

Interest income is accounted for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost or at fair
value through ather comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset. The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated by
taking into account any fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company
recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the hest estimate of a
constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial instrument. If expectations
regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk,
the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the
asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. The adjustment is
subsequently amortised through interest income in the statement of profit and loss. The
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets. When a financial asset becomes credit-
impaired, the Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the
net amortised cost of the financial asset. If the financial asset cures and is no longer credit-
impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis Interest income
on all trading assets and financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is
recognised using the contractual interest rate in net gain on fair value changes.

Interest income on deposits is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective
interest rate.

Fees and commission income such as guarantee commission, professional fee, service income
etc. are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with term of the contract with customer.
Foreclosure charges are collected from loan customers for early payment/closure of foan and
are recognised on realisation

Other revenue represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.

Net gain on fair value changes: The Company designates certain financial assets for subsequent
measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or fair value through other
comprehensive income (FYOCI}. The Company recognises gains/loss on fair value change of
financial assets measured at FVTPL and realised gains on derecognition of financial asset
measured at FVTPL and FVOCI on net basis.

All items of other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in the
ultimate realisation / collection.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost attributable to acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as a
part of the cost of such assets up to the date when such assets are ready for its intended use.

Other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax

Current tax is measured on the basis of taxable income for the current accounting period in
accordance with the tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date .

Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet approach on the temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, hased on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and these relate to income taxes levied
by the same tax authority and are intended to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or such tax assets and liabilities will be realised simuftaneously.

Inthe event of unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses under tax laws, deferred tax assets
are recognised 10 the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available
to realise such assets.

Provision for Current and Deferred Tax (Continued}

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is prabable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same relate
to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax relating to such items are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively.
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1.15 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability.
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events,
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.
Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is
remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities.
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

1.16 Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit before tax
is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or
future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing
or financing cash flows. The statement of cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.

1.17  Earning per Share {“EPS”)
The Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profit after tax for the year attributabie to the equity
sharehaolders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS, profit after tax for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity, with the Ind AS requires judgments, estimates
and assumptions to be made, that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities on the date
of the financial statements, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes different from
the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which
the results are known or materialise. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and
future periods.

The Company has developed various accounting estimates in these Financial Staterments based on
forecasts of economic conditions which reflect expectations and assumptions as at 31 March 2024
about future events that the Management believe are reasonable in the circumstances. There is a
considerable degree of judgement involved in preparing forecasts. The underlying assumptions are
also subject to uncertainties which are often outside the control of the Company. Accerdingly, actual
economic conditions are likely to be different from those forecast since anticipated events frequently
do not occur as expected, and the effect of those differences may significantly impact accounting
estimates included in these financial statements.

The significant accounting estimates impacted by these forecasts and associated uncertainties are
predominantly related to expected credit losses, fair value measurement, and recoverable amount
assessments of non-financial assets.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised.

Business Model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset

is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information

is provided to management. The information considered includes:

a) the stated policies and cobjectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice
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Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions (Continued)

b) how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company's
management;

c)  the risks that affect the performance of the business model {and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

d]  the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets, the reasons for such sales and
expectation about future sales activity.

e} 'How managers of the business are compensated {e.g. whether the compensation is based on
the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Company determines whether newly recognized

financial assets are part of an existing business model or whether they reflect a new business model.

The Company reassess its business models at each reporting period to determine whether the

business models have changed since the preceding period.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining
the economic life of an asset/component of an asset, The useful lives are reviewed by the
management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of a revision, the unamortised
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.s

Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligation

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future.

These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates.
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that
price is directly observahle or estimated using ancther valuation technique. When the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair values are measured using various valuation techniques
including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF} model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required
in establishing fair values. Judgment include consideration of input such as liquidity risk, credit risk
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and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.

Share-Based Payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using Discounted
Cash Flow (DCF) model to determine the fair value of the liahility incurred on the grant date.
Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.

This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model
including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them.

Impairment of Financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement,

in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when

determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances, The Company’'s ECL calculations are outputs of complex models with a number of
underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.

Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

a} The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life time ECL basis and the gualitative
assessment.

b} Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

c) Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and economic inputs.

d} Collateral values and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs.

e} Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

3 *')
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New standards or amendments to the existing standards and other pronouncements:

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these
amendments.

i.  Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements.
il.  Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a
requirement to disclose their 'material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities
apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not
on the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial
statements.

ili.  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments
to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences
such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these
amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease
liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify
for offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance
sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 April 2022.Apart from these,
consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 101, ind AS
102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34.

New Standards issued or amendments to the existing standard but not yet effective: There are no
standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements /continued)
Jor the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

32 Cash and Cash Equivalents {measured at amortised cost)

Particulars As at Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash on hand 1 1
Balance with Banks in Current Accounts 11,717 -

Fixed Deposits with banks {with original maturity of less than 3 maonths) B 12,501

Total

Bank balances other than above (measured at amortised cost)

=

Particutars Asat As at
tMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fixed Deposits with banks {with original maturity of more than 3 months} 31,486 24,016

Note: Out of the fixed depasits mentioned in note 8, fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 0.79 lakh [March 31, 2023: Rs. 0.7% lakh) is lien marked as
security against the Corporate Credit Card and Rs. 30,930 lakh {March 31, 2023: Rs. 23,808 lakh) Is lien marked as security against borrowing

facilities.
Loans
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Amaortised cost -
1) Bills purchased and bills discounted 20,246 15,980
(b} Term Loans 2,351,657 231022
Total (A] - Gross 221903 247,002
Less Impairment loss allowante 2,682 1676
Total (B) - Nat 2.89.421 LA4%.32¢6
Braak-up of Loans - Sacurity wise
la) Secured - Tangible Assets 2,71,088 2,44,961
|b) Covered by Central Government Guarantee (ECLGS Loans) a1s 2,040
{c} Unsecured - “
Total {A) - Gross 2.21.903 2.47.003
Less  Impairment loss allowance 2,682 1,676
Total {B) - Net PSS - ) C— % 7
Break-up of Loans - Sector wise
{a) Public Sector -
[b)] Others
(i] Retail 1,74,956 1.94,150
(ii} Corporates 96,947 62,852
Total (A} - Gross 220903, ALY
Less  Impairment lass allowance 2,682 1676
Total (B) - Net 252221
Note:

(i) All loans have been sourced and disbursed in India.

[ii) There is no loan asset measured at FVOC) or FVTPL or designated at FVTPL.

[ifi) There were no loans given 1o directors, key managemant personnels or any other related party.

(iv] Refer note no. 38 on "Financial risk management”.
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6  Investments

Pardculars At at Aasat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|A) Investments at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(a) Debt Securities {Quoted) - 10,585
Less . Allowance for impairment A
Total (Al 10583,
18} Investments at Amortised cost
[a) Pass through certificates 410 2,198
(b) Debt Securities (Quoted) 7,849 2 666
Total {B) - Gross 5,359 4,864
Less : Allowance for impairment 58 33
Total {B) - Net 8201 4831
(C} investments at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(a) Investment in Security Receipts (Unquoted) 91 154
91 154
Total Investments (A} + (B} + [C) LI S — 1 *-
Note . All investments have been made in Indla
?  Other Financial Assets {at amortised cost)
Parviculars Asat Asat
March 31, 1024 March 31, 2023
[a) Security Deposit 327 251
[b) Other financial assets 1,869 o
Total 2,196 251
8 Current Tax Assets |net]
Particulars. Asat As at
March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tax deducted at source [ Advance Tax 2,878 373
Less - Provision for Tax 2,517 273
———— eme—
9  Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Particuiars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
a) Deferred Tax Asset
Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961 18 11
Measurement of financial assets and financial labikbes at amortized cost 15 ]
Impact on account of lease accounting as per Ind AS 116 21 15
Income from financial assets based on Effective interest rate 116 40
Measurement of financial assets at FYOCt 9 ?
Expected credn loss on financial Instruments 675 422
Total 33, 504
b) Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2 2
Unamortised Expenditure 260 204
Measurement of financial assets at FYOCI -
£1S Income for DA as per INDas. 470 S
Total i 2
Net Deferred Tax Asset (a} - (b) e ——— ———
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10 Property, Piant & Equipment and Intangible assets

Gross Carrying Amaount A |ated Depreclation and amortizath Net Carrylng Amount
As at Addition Deduction As at Asst Dep fon/ Deducti As at Asat As at.
LI Particulacy April 1, 2023 March31,2024  Apcll1,2023  Amortlsation March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{i}  Property, plant and aquipment
1  Furniture and Fixtures 112 n - 184 19 13 - 32 152 93
2 Computers 313 76 389 201 76 = 77 112 112
3 Office Equipment 1 4] 1 0 -0 2 0 1 4
4  Motor Vehicle 11 7 - 18 2 2 = q 13 9
5 Right of use lease Asset 2,140 1,086 42 3,184 984 433 - 1417 1,767 1,156
Total 2317 1241 42 aze 1206 =24 : LTI 2.045 1371
() intangible Assats
1 Computer Software 553 27 580 416 53 . 459 111 137
Tow! = Al - 30 g 53 : 459 121 137
Gross Carrying Amount A |ated Depreclation and amortizath Net Carrying Amount
5.Na. Particulars As at Addition Deduction As at Asat  Daprecation/ Deduction As at As at As at|
April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023 April 2,2022  Amortlisatlon March 31,2023  March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
() Tangible Assets
1 Furmiture and Fixtures 46 66 112 9 10 - 19 93 37
2 Computers 246 n 10 313 149 &2 10 201 112 97
3  Office Equipment ] 1 - 1 0 4] . 1] 1 1]
q Maotor Vehicle S 6 11 1 1 - F 9 3
5  Rightof use lease Asset 1,262 B78 - 2,140 631 353 . 984 1,156 €31
Total 1,559 L028 10 2577 I %6 10 1206 1371 Z68 |
{ii} Intangible Assets
1 Computer 5oftware 493 [I+] 553 303 113 - 416 137 190
Total 493 ) : 553 0 12 : 26 127 120
10A Intangible assets under development as on March 31, 2024:
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less thanl 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Projects in progress 35 - : 35
Intangible assets under development as on March 31, 2023:
Particulars Amount In CWIP for 2 pariod of Total
Less than 1 1.2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3
year years
Prajects in progress = =

a For Depreciation and amortiration poficy refer accounting policyna 15and 16

b There i no immovable property {other than properties where the Company lithe lessee and the lease are duly d in favour of the {essee) whose titie deed is held i the name of the company
Benami properties:
No proceedings have been imtiated or pending against the campany for holding any benami property under the Benamu Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1938 {45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder
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11  Other Non - Financial Assets

Particulary As at As at
March 31, 1024 March 31, 2023
(a) Prepaid Expense 193 149
{b} Sundry Advances 60 20
() GST Credit available 234 204
Total rva FTen
12 Trade Payables
Farticulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Other Paysbles®
(a} Tolal outstanding dues of micre enterprise and small enterprise 155 52
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and 738 813
small enterprise
Total JE— T S

*Refer note 59 for ageing schedule

13 Debt Securities

Particulars. As ot Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

At Amortised Cost
{a} Non Convertible Debentures 8,380 5,809
(b) Borrowing under Securitisation [from banks) 20,081 14,099
Total 28461 19,904
Qebt Securities in India 28,461 19,908
Oebt Secunities outside India .
Total 28,461 29,908
Secured 28,461 19,908
Unsecured
Total AB.361 13,908
Note

a} Borrowlngs mentioned above, has been fully securad by first exclusive charge (fipating) over loan receivables and book debts of the Company.
&} The Company has not defaulted on any of its dabt securities repayments till date.

¢} The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government ar any government authority.

d) Funds borrowed have been wtilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned.

e} Quarterly returns or statements of current assets fited by the Company with debenture trustees are in agreement with the books of accounts

1) Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purpose

Terms of repayment of borrowings and rate of Interest

As per terms of agreements Debt Securities in India aggregating Rs. 8,380 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs. 5,809 lakh) are sepayable at maturity ranging
between 30 and 38 months from the date of respective debenture. Rate of interest payable on debt securities varies between 9.57% to 11.60%
{March 31, 2023 : between 9.57% to 11.60%).

As per terms of agreements borrowings under securitisation aggregating Rs. 20,081 lakh [March 31, 2023: Rs. 14,099 lakhs} are repayable at
maturity renging between 63 and 123 menths (March 31, 2023: 30 and 123 months) from the date of respective debt securtties. Rate of Inlerest
payable on debt securities varies between 8.50% to 8.70% {March 31, 2023 : 9.45% 10 9,50% ).
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14 Boriowlings aother than Debt Securities

Particulars A pt As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At Amortised Cost
{a) Term Loans (Secured)

(i} From Banks 1,21,409 1,06,625

{11} Others 22,068 25,996
(b} WCOL Loans {Secured}

{i} From Banks 8,963 4,752
{c] Bank Cash Credit (Secured) - 1,939
{d) Bank Overdraft Facilities (Secured) 17.819 19,962
Total (a+b+c+d) 3,790,259 1,59,274
Note

a) Borrowings mentioned above, has been fully secured by first exclusive charge {floating) over loan receivables and book debts of the Company.

b} The & y has not defauited on any of its term loan repayments till date.

€) All the above borrowings have been botrowed in India.

d) The Company has not been declared willful defautter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government autharity.

e} Funds borrowed have been utilised for the purpose for which they were sanctioned.

f} Quarterly retums or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of
accounts,

g} Funds raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purpose.

Terms of repayment of borrowings and rate of Interest

As per terms of agreements loan from banks aggregating Rs. 1,30,372 lakh {March 31, 2023: Rs. 1,11,377 lakh) are repayahte at maturity ranging
between 3 and 63 months (March 31, 2023: 3 and 60 months) fram the date of respective loan. Rate of interest payable on term loans varies
between 7.95% te 12.15% (March 31, 2023 : 7.60 % to 13%).

As per terms of agreements loan from others aggregating Rs. 22,068 lakh {March 31, 2023: Rs. 25,996 lakh] are repayable at maturity rarging
between 24 and 48 months {March 31, 2023: 36 and 48 months) from the date of respective loan. Rate of interest payable en term loans varies
between 9,30% to 11.25% (March 31, 2023 : 9.25 % to 11.65%).

15 Dther Financlal Liabilitles

Particulsn As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Collateral deposit from Customer 5,653 4,288
(b) Lease Liability 1,850 1,213
(¢} Dther expenses 813 rY
{d) Book overdraft - 3,178
{e ) Other financial liabilities 1,507 .
Total 2823 8751
16  Current Tax Liabilities (Net}
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for Tax 318 1107
Less : Tax deducted at source / Advance Tax
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17

13

Provislons
Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Employee benelits 953 1,081
{b) Gratuity 92 56
Tatal 4,050 L4322
Other Non-Financial Liabillties
Partdoulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|2} Statutory dues 263 246
{b) tncome received in advance 1,468 1,028
[c} Deferred Income on Collateral Deposits from Customers 2,375 1,807

P— . —Y.-}

Total
Share Capital
Particulars As As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Authorised
98,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 98,000 98,000
[March 31, 2023: 98,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
2,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000 2.000
[March 31, 2023: 2,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each)
Total 1,00,000 1,00,000
ksued, Subscribed and Pald-up
73,69,99,686 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 73,700 73,700
[March 31, 2023: 73,69,99,686 Eauity Shares of Rs. 10 each)
Total 13,700 13,200
Reconclilation of Equity Shares
No Of Shares Rs. In Lakhs
Opening balance as at April 1, 2022 61,67,16,667 61,672
Issued during the year 12,02,83.019 12,028
Closing balance as at March 31,2023 73,69,99,686 73,700
Issued during the year - -
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 —a02.83.68C —— SO

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions
Voting Rights .

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each sharehelder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the

event of liquidatian of the C
distrib of all prefi ial Is. H
number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Details of shares held by ACTIS PC Investment (Mauritius] Limited - Holding £

y, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after
. no such preferential amount exists cuerently. The distribution will be in praportion to the

lding mora than 5% of the aggregate shares of the

Company)
No Of Shares Percentage
Opening balance ac at April 1, 2022 64,67,16,167 100%
Issued during the year 12,02,83,019 -
Closing balance as st March 31,2023 73,69,99,186 100%
Issued during the year o o
Closing balance as at March 31, 2024 23.69.99.186 200%

No shares were bought back by the Company during the year.

No shates were allotted by the Company as fully paid up pursuant ta any contract without payment being received.

No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
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20  Other Equity
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 Miarch 31, 2023
{a} Security Premium 28,870 2B.870
(b} Statutory Reserve 1,933 969
(¢ } Other Comprehensive Income
- Fair Valuation of Investments. = 1
{d) Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss 5,594 1,752
{e) Share Based Payment Reserve 1330 1.330
37121 32922
Nature and Purpose of Reserves
Name of Reserve Nature and Purpose of Reserve
{3} Security Premium account Premium received upon issuance of equity shares
(b} Statutory Reserve Every year the Company transfers a of sum of nat

{c} Other Comorehensive Income

less than twenty per cent of net profit of that year as
disciosed In the statement of profit and loss to its
Statutory Reserve pursuant to Section 45-IC of the
R8I Acx, 1934

Created on account of items measured through other
comprehensive income

{d) Surplus in Statemnent of Profit and Loss Created out of accretion of profits
{e} Share based payment reterve {Refer note no. 32 for further details) Created out of contributions received for CCPS and
OCPS from the beneficaries
21  Interest Income
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
|A} Financial Assets measured at amortised cost
{3} Loans 31,914 23,787
{b) Investmants in PTC 142 112
{c) Investments in Debt securities 701 145
Others
{a) Fixed Depasits 1,928 786
{b) Security Deposit 16 15
{c] Fair Valuation of Collateral Deposit from Customers 484 331
Total (A} —30lE ————
(B} Financlal Assets measured at FVOCI
{a} Investment in Debt securities 914 1.069
Total {B) 4 1069,
Total (A] + (B) ——a 0 — (¥ L
[C} Gain/loss on derecognition of inancial instruments at amortised cost 2,128
Total (<) 2128
22 Fee and Commission Income
Particulars For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
On Financial assets measured at Amortized cost
(3} Foreclosure charges 1,190 6564
(b} Others 270 155
Total 1460 212,
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23

24

%

27

Net gain/loss on fair value changes

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 1023
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Mutual fund investments 416 165
Net gain on financial instruments at FVOQ!
- Debt securities L] 49
Tatal Net gain/(lass) on fair value changes 506 214
Fair value changes
- Realised S06 214
- Unrealised -
Other income
Partlculars For the year anded for the year ended
March 31, 2024 Maich 31, 2023
Interest on Income tax refund 10 22
Bad Debts recovery [ 2
Miscellaneous income 1 4
Total —1 il
Finance Costs
Partculars for the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortlsed cost
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 14,925 9,705
Interest debt securities 967 560
Interest on lease habiliy 160 102
Interest on Coliateral Deposit from Customers 484 331
Interest on Securitisation Borrowing 1,724 164
Total —AC —d0E6L
Impairment ¢n financial Instruments
Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
{a) Write off / Bad debts 300 291
{b] iImpairment Loss Allowance at amortized cost -
- on Loans 982 688
on Undrawn Commitments 23 6
- on investments at amortised cost 25 7
{c) Investments impairment loss allowance / {reversal) at FYOC| o} {18)
Total 1330 354
Employee Benefits Expense
Partlculars For the year andad For tha yasr andad
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Payments to and Provision for Emplovees
- Salaries and Wages 8,928 7,329
- Gratuity expenses (refer note 31) g1 b4
- Contribution to Provident and cther Funds 3 30
Statf Welfare expenses 192 121
Total 3580 Lais
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28  Other Expenses

Particulars For the year ended For tha year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Auditor's Remuneration 118 33
Bank Charges 8 22
Credit Assessment Cost 401 400
IT expenses 871 725
Rent 145 133
Repairs & Maintenance-Others €9 70
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses {refer note 58) 40 15
Contractual Services 459 385
Rates and Taxes 42 24
Directors' Sitting Fees 11 10
Rating Fees 102 54
Legal & Professinnal Fees 452 409
Collection Cost 76 15
Printing and Stationary 158 154
Postage,Telegram & Telephone 56 33
Travel & Convevance 932 503
Miseellaneous Expenseas 132 109

4,073 —_ 3004

{a) Auditor's Remuneration :

Particulars

Statutory Audit Fees {excluding taxes)
Tax Audit Fees

QOther Sarvices

Out of pocket expenses

Totat

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Far the year ended
March 31, 2023

107 25
5 4
5 3
1 i
118 33

(b] Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars Far the year ended Far the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Consultancy 11 ]
Total — 11 )

There are no unhedged foreign currency transactions as at the year end.
29 Earnings per Share {EPS):

Partculars For the year ended Far the year andad

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit after Tax 4,816 2,993
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 4,816 2,993
Weighted average number of equity shares [Nos. In lakh} 7,370 6,798
Diluted Weighted average number of equity shares {Nos. in lakh) 7,503 6,931
Basic eamings per share of face value Rs. 10 each {In Rupees) 0.65 044
Diluted earnings per share of face value Rs. 10 each {In Rupees)* 0.64 0.43

* Dituted equity shares has CCPS and QCPS conversion in the rationof 1:1
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30

U]

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes’

i

L}

{iv)

Tax ised in the Stat t of Prafit and Loss
Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
March 31. 2024 March 31.2023
Current tax:
In respect of current vear 1.453 1.07¢
Daforred tax charge / {eradit):
Deferred tax relating to ongination and réversal of temporary differences 175 -68
Total Income Tax recotntied in profit or loss
Current tax 1.458 1076
Deferred tax charge / {creda) 175 -
Total Income Tax recognlsad in proflt or loss 1633 1.008
Tax r d In Other comp t
Particulars For the year ended  For tha yaa anded
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Incom tax 1o itams grised in Qther comprehensive i
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plan 4 14
o e T DT I T ——————
Reconciliation of affective tax rate ,
The recongibiation of estimated income tax expense al (ax rate Lo income tax expense reparted in profit or kass 13 as follows
Particulars Fot the year ended  For tha year anded
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Profit efore Tax 6,449 4,001
Enacted income tax rate |%) 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated at apphcable iIncome tax rate 1,623 1,007
Tax effect of adjustments to reconciie expecied Income tax expense Lo reported income Lax expense:
Expenses that are not deductible fof tax purpcies 1521 1,000
Deductions available under income tax -1.816 1.082
Dther Income 130 3
Income Tax expense recoznised in profit and loss 1458 1.076
Deferred Tax recogmsed in profit and loss 175 -68
Tax recognised in profit and losy 1,633 1,008
Actual effective income tax rate (%) PEFEF 4. FE.. Y
Movement In Deferred Tax
Movement in Deferred Tax Assat/{Usbilities) (or the yaar ended 315t March, 2024:
Particulars Asan  Recognhad in the Recegnised in OCE Ason

315t March, 2013

. Impact on account of lease accounting as per Ind AS 116 26
b. Fair value gain/llass) on investments carried at FYOC) 7

t. Income from financial assets based on Effectrve interest rate 40
d. Income from financial liabilities based on Efective interest rare - 104
e, Expected <redit loss on financial instruments 431
f. Others -

g Depreciation and amartization on praperty, plant and equipment -2

Statemant of
Perofit or Loss

13

76
56
259
470

315t March, 2024

39

Total

Movement in Deferred Tax Arsat/ |Liabilcigs] for the year ended 315 March, 2013:

Particulars Aaon in the L. isad in OCI Ason

April 1, 2022 otormont of 315t March, 2023
Prolit or Lon

8. Impact on account of lease accounting o3 par ind AS 116 14 12 - 6

b. Fair value gam/ilass] on investments carriad at FYOC! Q 7 7

¢. Income from financial assets based on Effective interest rate 5% +15 - 40

d. Income from financial liabilities based on Effective interest rare -94 -110 - 104

e Expected credit loss on financial instruments 254 177 - 431

f. Business Losses cff 11 -11 o

g Depreciation and amortization an property, plant and equipment 1 16 2

Total £3 ri m.
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31 Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund (PF} Contribution

The Company makes cont i PF, in respect of qualifying employees. The amount r i a5 an and included in Note 27
“Employee Benefits” under the head “Contribution ta Provident and Dther Funds™ are as under.

The employees of the are bers of a reti t cantribution plan operated by the government. The Company Is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement contribution scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Company with respect to the
plan is to make the specified contributions.

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Emplayer’s Contributien to Provident Fund ars 301

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity

The € has a defined benefit gratulty plan, under which every i wha has pleted atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on departure

@15 days of last drawn baskc salary for each completed year of service.

The plan i5 of a final salary defined benefit in nature which is sponsered by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan.
The actuarlal risks associated are:

Interast Rate Risk:

The risk of governmant security yields falting due to which the corresponding discount rate used for valuing liabilities falls. Such a fall in discount rate will result
in a larger value pfaced on the future benefit cash flows whilst computing the lizbility and thereby requiring higher accounting provisicning.

Lengevity Risks:

Lengevity risks arises when the of henefits payable under the plan Is based on how long the employee lives post cessation of service with the
The gratuity plan provides the benefit in 3 lump sum form and since the benefit is not payable as an annuity for the rest of the Hves of the emplayeas,
there |5 no langevity risks.

Salary Risks:

The gratuity benefits under the plan are refated to the employee’s last drawn salary. Consequently, any unusual rise in future salary of the employee
raises the of benefit payable by the company, which results in a higher liability for the company and is therefore a plan risk for the company.

™

The estimates of the future safary increases, ¢ d in actuarial valuation, include inflation, seniarity, p ion and other rel factors such as supply
and demand in the employmant market. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on gavernmeant securitles as at the balance sheet date
for the estl ) ge r ining service,

The disclosure as required by Indian Accounting dard (Ind AS) -19 “Employee Benefits” is as under,

The mortality rate is based an the Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 (Urban) table.

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1. Assumption
Interest / Discovm Rate 7.16% 120%
Rate of increase In compensation 7.65% T65%
Expected average remaining service 3 k]
Il Reconcliiation of net defined benafit (asset)/liability
fa) Reconciliation of present velue of defined benefit obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 257 173
Intarest Cast 22 10
Current Service Cost 74 ]
Artuarial {Gains) / Losses 44 3
Benefits Paid -10 -
Cioslng Detined Benefit Obligation 417 297
{b} Reconciliation of foir value of plan osset
Fair value of plan assets at the baginning of year 241 128
Interest Incame 18 7
Contributions 56 107
Benefits paild -10 -
Return on Plan Assets exciuding Interest income 0 -1
Falr value of plan assets at the and of year 335 241
fc) Reconcitiation of net defined benefit {osset)iability - -
Present value of Obligation as at the end of year 427 297
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of year 335 41
Funded status 92 -56
Recognised in Balance Sheet - {Asset) / Uability 93 - 56
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31 Employee benefits {Continued)

Particulars As at Agat
March 31, 2004 March 31. 2023

Hl. Actuarial [Gain}/Loss on Obligation

Due tc Demographic Assumption -14 2
Due to Financial Assumption 4 .46
Due to Fxperience 64 67
Net Actwarial [Gain}/ Loss on Obligation 44 53,
V. Actual Return on Plan Assets

Actual Interest Income 18 G
Expected Interest Incame 12 -7
Return on Plan Assets excluding ntenest income o -3
V. Net Interest

Interest Expense 22 10
Interest Income -18B -7
Net (nterest Exp/f(incoma) 4 3
VI, Expentes Recognised in Profit and Loss account under

Employes benafit expenses

Current Service Cost L) 61
Net Interest Exp/{Income) 4

Past Service Cost {vested benefits)

Expansas recognised in Profik and Loss Account 78 64
Vil R ised in Other Comprahansive i

Net Actuarial {Gain)/ Loss on Obllgation 44 53
Return on Plan Assets excluding Interest Income 30 -1
Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised In OCI 14 54
Vil Others

Meighted average duraticn of defined benefit Dhiigati 8 B
Senultivity anatysis |
Sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial A howing how the defined benefit Obligation would be affected, considering increase/decrease
of 100 basis points as at 31-03-24 is as below

Particulars Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023

Change in rate of Discount Rate + 100 basis points 26 -19
Change in rate of Discount Rate- 100 basis points 30 22
Change In rate of 3alary Escalation Rate + 100 basls polnts 30 2
Change in rate of Salary Escalation Rate - 100 basls points -27 -19
Change in rate of Attrition Rate + 100 basis points -3 2
Change in rate of Attntion Rate - 100 basis points 3 2

Tha Expected Payout as at 315t March 2024 are as under:

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2024 Mpich 31, 1023
Year 1 7 14
Year 2 30 18
Year 3 29 &0
Year 4 28 20
Year S 66 19
Yaar 6 to Vear 10 168 135
Sum of Years 11 and above idd 288

Movements in the fair value of tha plan sssets are as follows.

Particulars Asat Asat

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Opening fair value of glan assets 241 128
Interest income 18 ?
Return on plan assets {excluding amounts wcluded in net interest expense) 30 -1
[¢

ributions from the k 56 107
3 -10
335 41
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32 Share Based Payments

The Company has Issued the Share Based Payment {SBP) Plan to its Key Managerial Personne! (KMP) under Contributory as well as Management Incentive Plan.

As a part of the plan, the Company has allotted Convertible preference shares {Series A, Series B and Series C) in lieu of Share Based Payment which are
convertible into equity shares at the time of liquidation/other exit avants in accordance with terms and conditions a5 stated in the agreement. These
instruments are hetd by a trust which acquires and holds the same for the benefit of Key 1ent P | (beneficlarles} and the units of which are issued
to the beneficlarles.
In accordance with Ind AS 102, in case of Share Based Payments with employees, the fair vaiue of equity instrument granted is detesmined and the ditference
between the fair vaiue and consideration received s recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. In case of Share based payment made by the
campany, the falr value of the Plan is equal 1o the cansideration received by the company

A. Contributory incentive Plan
Terms of 0.001% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares (OCP5)

Under the CIP Plan, the Company has issued 0 D01% Optionally Convertible Preference Shares which are held by the trust for the benefit of Key Managerial

Personnel. These preference shares are bifurcated into Series A Preference Shares and Serles 8 Preference Shares having face value of Rs. 10 each.

Senes A Preference Shares are issued in consideration far transaction price of Re. 1085 lakhs. recetved from the KMP through a trust. The transaction price

represents the fair value as on the date of issue of these Preference Shares. The preference Shares will be converted inta Equity Shares as on the date of

liquidation/exit event in the ratio of 1:1.

Series B Preference Shares are issued annually for a period of 3 years from the date of formation of the Trust. Series B Preference Shares are issued in
lon for tr price of fAis. 90 lakhs (FY 21-22}, 75 lakhs [FY 20-21)} and 104 lakhs [FY 2019-20) received from the KMP through 2 trust. The

transaction price represents the fair value as on the date of issue of these Preference Shares, The preference Shares will be converted into Equity Shares as on

the date of liquidationfexit event In the ratio of 1:1.

These instr are vested i diately at the ime of its issue by the Company.

B. Management Incentive Plan

Terms of 0.001% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares {CCPS)

Under the MIP Pian, the company has issued Compulsarily Convertible Preference Shares {Series € Preference Shares) which are held by the trust for the benefit
of Key ial P |. These Pref; a shares have a face value of Rs, 10 each.

Series C Preference Shares are issued in Ideration for tr ion price of Rs. 21 lakhs recered fram the KMP through the trust. The transaction price
represents the fair value as on the date of issue of these Preference Shares. The preference Shares will be converted into variable number of Equity Shares as an
the date of fiquid fexit event. The ber of equity shares %o be issued is based on the terms of the Trust.

These Instruments are vested based on the vesting schedul ved in the agr Refer table below on Description of Share Based Payment,

The amounts of COPS and OCPS are as follows

Particulars Asar Asat As st

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, W22

Series A Preference Shares 1,085 1,085 1,085

Series B Preference Shares i1 224 224

Optionally Convertible Preference Shares 1,309 1,309 1,309

Series C Preference Shares 21 21 21

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares 21 2t 21

Tatal Preferance Shares 1.330 1,330 1,330

€. Description of Share Basad Payment

Partlcutars Serles A Series 8 Serles C*

I. Vesting Canditions Immaediate Yesting Immediate Vesting 10% at the end of
each of 12 months &
24 months and 20% at
the end of gach of 36
months, 48 months B
€0 months.

fi. Method of Settlement Equity Settted Equity Settled Equity Settled

* In the event of Liquidation/exit event, there will be accelerated vesting of ali the remalning unvested units.,

0. Summary of Shara Based Payments
The following are the details of vested units in case of MIP Plan [Series ()

Particulars March 2024 March 2023
Total vested units at the beginning of the year 80% 60%
Granted during the year . -
Vested during the year 20% 20%
Exercised during the yaar =
Lapsed during the year o o
Total vested units at the end of the year 100% 80%
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33 Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases”

The Company has entered Into various lease arrangements for its Office premises and branches, These arrang: are for ranging L 1105 years and
are renewable by mutual consent within the parties. Leases for which the lease term is less than 12 months are considered as short term leases.
Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-usa assets recognised and the movements during the period :
Particulars Bulidings Tetal
As at April 1, 2022 631 631
Additions 878 878
Delations o O
Depreciation expense -353 -353
As at March 3, 2023 1,156 1156
Additions 1,086 1.086
Deletions -42 _42
Deareciation expense -433 -433
As at March 31, 2024 1,767 1,767
Ser out helow are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities {included in other fi ial liabilities) racognised and the during the period :
Particulars Total
As at April 1, 2022 687
Additions 853
Deletions G
Accretion of Interest 102
Payments -419
As at March 31, 2023 1,212
Additions 1,040
Datetions -29
Accretion of interest 160
Pavments - 534
As at March 31, 2024 1,850
Amounts recognized in the statement of Profit and foss :
Particulars For the yeas ended For the yesr ended
March 31, 20248 Masch 31, 2023
Depreciation on Right of use assels 433 353
Interest expense on lease liabilities 160 102
Expense rafating to Short-term leases 135 133
Impact on the statemant of profit and loss for the period 738 588
Maturity analysis of Lease Llabliitles:
Particulars As at Asat
March 31. 2023 March 31, 2023
Not later than 1 vear 416 288
Later than 1 vear and not fater than S vears. 1.434 925
Later than 5 vears - -
Total 1,850 1,213
34 Disclosure of Related party transactions pursuant to (Ind AS - 24} and Companles act 2013 “Related Party Disclosures”
{l) Ust of Related Parties and relationship:
Nama of the relatad party Nature of relationship
1. Actis Global 4 LP Ultimate Holding Company
2. ACTIS PC Investment {Mauritius) Limited Helding Company
3. Mr_ K.V Srinlvasan Key Managerial Personnel - Whole Time Director & CEC
4. Mr. Sandip Parikh Key Managerlal Personnei - CFQ
5. Mr. Nitin Pangarkar Key A B ) - C5
315t March 2023
Rame of the related party Nature of transaction / balance FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
1. ACTIS PC Investment |Mauritius} Limited Equity Share Capital issued 73,700 73,700
2. Key Managerial Persannel: Salary 560 518
Share Based Payments 923 913
Note;
2. The above related party transactions are at Arms Length Price,
b. The remuneration of dirertors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the perdfermance of individuals and market Lrends.
The above figures do not include provisions for gratuity and premium paid for group health i as valuation / premium paid are not
avallable.
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15 Finandal tnstruments « Accounting dassifications and fair vaiue meacuremants
The tair values of the finandial assets and habilties are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a cutrent transaction between

willing parties, other than in a forced or hquidation sale

The follawing section summarises the major and asw ons uted in £ the fair values of hnanaal instruments reflected in the table.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices For example listed financial instruments that have quoted market pnce.

Level 2: The fzir value of financial instruments thal are not traded in an active market (for example traded bonds over-the- counter derlvatives) is determined
using ion techni which the use of observahle market data and rely as littie as passible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs

requited 1o fair value an instrument are obiervable the Instrument Is included in level 2.

Level 3; Lategory includes financial assets and llablizies measured using valuation techniques based an non-market obzarvable inputs. This means that fair
values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based an assumptions that are neither supparted by price from observable current market
transactions n the same instrument nor are thay based on availabla market data. However, the far value measurement abjective remains the same, that is, to
estimate an exit price from the perspective of the Company. The main atset classes in this category are unbisted equity investments as well ac unlisted funds.

The following table shows the categores of Financial Instruments

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Amount

FVTPL Amortised Cost FvoQ) Total
FRinancial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivatents 11,718 g 11,718
Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalent stated above 1),486 . 31.486
Laans 269,221 2,689,221
Investments 91 8,201 - B.252
Other financial assets - 2.136 2,196
Total 3! 3,212,822 - 3,22,913
Financiat liabilities
Trade Paysbies 33 853
Debt Securitles. 29,461 18,461
Borrowlngs other than debt securities 1,70.25% 1,70,259
Other financial liabilities D 9,823 g 9,823
Total - 1,090,436 - 1,05,436
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Amount

FVTPL Amartised Cost FvoQ Total
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equrvalents 12,502 12,502
Bank Balances nther than Cash & Cash Equwalent stated above 24,016 14,016
Loans 2.45,326 2.45326
Investments: 154 4831 10,583 15,563
Other financial assets - 251 - 51
Total 154 2,806,926 10.583 2,97,663
Flnancial liabillties
Trade Payables - 365 - 865
Debt Securities = 19,908 - 19,908
Borrawings other than debt securrties 1,59,274 159,274
Other financial liabitities . 8,751 8,751
Total - 183,798 . 1,88,798
The following table [ | assats and fi Itabllities measured at fair valua on recurring basis:
As st March 31, 2024 Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 lavel 2 Level 3 Total

Financlal Assets
Financal Assets at FVTPL
Investment in Security Aecelpts 51 91
FAnanclal Assets at FVGLO)
Debt Securities -
Total Financial Assets - 9 - 9t
Az ar March 31, 2023 Fale volue hararchy
13t March 2022 Levell Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Financlal Assets
Financial Assets at FUTPL
Investment in Security Receipts 154 154
Financial Assets at FYOC1
Debt Securitias 10,585 - -
Tatal Financlal Assets 10,585 154 -
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35 Financial Instr - A Ing classificati and fair value fCi ]

The following table summarizes disclasure of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at 31st March 2024 Carrying Amount Falr Value  Falr Vakue hisrarchy
Fnancial Assets

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Loans 2,869,221 2,712,362 Level3
Investmants 8,201 8,259 Level 3
Other Financial Assets 1,196 2,156 Level 3
Total Fnancial Assets 2,79,613 282017

Financial habilities

Trade Payables B93 893 Level 3
Detrt Securities 28,461 28,477 Level 3
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 1.70,25% 1,71.27%6 Level 3
Other Financial Liabilities 9,823 9,823 Level 3
Total Financial Uabilities 2.09,436 2,10,469

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Amount Falr Valus  Fair Value hierarchy:
Flnancial Assets

Finandal Assets at Amortised Cost

Loans 245,326 2,47,159 tevel 3
Investments 4,831 4,864 Level 3
Other Financial Assets 251 251 Level 3
Tatal Financial Asssts 2,50,408 2,52,274

Fnancial liabilivies

Trade Payables 865 865 Level 3
Debt Securities 19,908 19,832 Level 3
Borrowings other than Debl Securities 159,274 1,60,061 Level 3
Qther Financial Liabiities 8,751 B,751 Level 3
Total Finandial Liabilities. 188,798 1,89,609

Valuation technique

The camrying value of cath and cash equivalents, cther bank balances, other financial assets, Pass through certificates. trade payables and other financial
liabilities are considered to be equal ta the falr value

Partfolio loans - The fair value is determined by discounting the aggregate future cash flows (both principal and inmterest cash flaws) with weighted average IRR
for the remairing tenure.

Boreowings - The interest rates on barrowlngs are based on floating rates reflecting current market pricing. the carnaing value of these loans equals farr values
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36 Maturity Analysis of Assets & Liabilities

37

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Within 12 Months  After 12 months Totai Within 12 Months  After 12 months Total
Assets
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 11,718 . 11,713 12,502 - 12,502
Bank balances other than (a) above 30,358 1,128 31,486 307 23,709 24,016
Loans 96,070 1,73,151 2,69,221 79,636 1,65,650 2,45,326
Investments 6,888 1404 8,292 13,882 1,686 15,568
Other financial assets 28 2,168 2,196 44 207 251
Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets {net) 361 361 100 100
Deferred tax assets {net) 122 122 298 298
Praperty, plant and eguipment - 279 279 215 215
Right of use assets 477 1,290 1,767 325 a3t 1,156
Intangible assets . 111 111 137 137
Intangible assets under development 35 - 35 -
Other nen-financial assets 475 12 487 366 7 373
Total Assets 1,465,049 1,80,026 3,26,075 1,072,062 1,92,380 2,399,943
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilitles
Trade Payables 893 - 833 865 - 865
Debt Securities 2,200 26,261 28,461 6,855 13,053 19,908
Borrowings other than debt securities 96,202 74,057 1,70,259 61,927 97,347 1,568,274
Other financial liabilities 2,051 7,172 9,823 3,989 4,762 8,751
Non-Financial Liabifities
Current Tax Liabilities {Net) 56 L - Rl 304
Provisions 1,049 - 1,050 1,081 56 1,137
Other non-financial liabilities 41 4,065 4,106 27 3,054 3,081
Total Liabllitles 102,436 1,12, 211 2,14,648 74,744 1,18,576 1,93,320
Net 43,612 67,815 1,181,427 32&18 7@4 1|06|623

Capital Management

The Company's capital management objectives are

- to ensure the Company’s abllity to continue as a going cancern
- to comply with externally iImposed capital requirement

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders

- to maintain the Caphal Adequacy ratio as preseribed by RBI

Management assesses the Company’s capital requirermnents in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. The Company
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes In economic conditions and the risk charactenstics of the underlying assets. In arder
te maintain or adjust the capital structure the Company may adjust the amount of dividends pald to shareholders retumn capital to sharehelders issue new shares or

sell assets to reduce debt,

Particulars

Dabt

Less: Cash and other bank batances
Net Debt

Net equity

Net debt to equity ratio

Capital Adequacy Ratlo

Asat
March 31, 2024
1,98,720
43,204
1,558,516
1,11,427
1.40
39.54%

As at|

March 31, 2023,
182,360
36,518
1,45,842
1,06,622
1.37

43.24%

Note: The above debt does not include book overdraft
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38 Flnandcial Risk Management

The Company's Beard of Directors has overall responsibility for the i and oversight of the Company's nsk fr . The board of
directors has constituted the risk 'l < i which is respansible for developing and itoring the Cormpany’s risk I’ policies The
[« /s rigk te itee oversees how itars ¢ liance with the Company’s risk ag pokees and procedures, and

reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

The Company's risk management policies are astablished 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, ta set appropriate risk limits and controls and

1% meniter (ks and edherence ko Imiks. Aisk menagement palicies and systems are reviewed regufarty 10 reflect changes In marke? conditions.

The Company has exp to the foll risks arlsing from its business operations

1) Cradit risk

Credit risk Is the risk of financial loss if a customer or counterparty fails 1o meet an obligation under a contract. Lending activities account for most of the
Campany's cradit risk. Other sources of credit risk also exist in loans and ransaction sewttements. Credit risk is measured as the amount that could be lostdd
3 customer of counterparty fails 1o make repay The i xposure to credit risk in case of all the financial instruments is restricted to their
respective carrying amaunt.
Credit Risk is monitored through stringent credit aporasal, countee party limits and intemal risk ranges of the borrowers. Exposure 10 credit risk &
managed through reguiar analysis of the abiity of all the ¢ s and ¢ parties Lo meet i and capital 1 bligations and by ch
lending limits where approptiate.
Campany primarity offers toans secured by ¢ollaterat in the nature of residential, commercial and industrial property and in some Cases are backed by
machinery/equipment as well as financial collateral in the nature of securtty depasits. in order to mitigate credit nsk, C y alsa seeks collateral
appiopriate to the product segment,

The main types of callateral abtained are as follows:

School Funding Program and Enterprise Mortgage Loans Portfolio are secured against Financial collateral and Property. Machine Equipment Loan portfolio
Is secured against Financial collateral and Machinery/Equipment. Microfinance Term Loan partfollo s secured against Financial collateral snd Financial

receivables
Tha tabla rep les of colistarals available against the loan exposures :
Asat At ot

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
- Catagories of Coll ' Auailabl
a) Financial Coilateral 8,542 6,523
b} Real Estate (Commescial/ResidentialfIndustrial Propenty) 3,25,139 1,68,177
€) Machinery and Equipment 82,854 65,807
d} Receivables 74,934 $6,158
Total 4,91,510 1,956,665
Thae table rep gories of coll | lable agalnst the loan exposures that are credit impaired

As at Asat

March 31, 2023 MWiarch 31, 2023
+ Categotles of Coll
a) Financial Coliaterat 52 50
b) Real Estate {Commercial/Residential/industrial Property) 3.062 1715
¢) Machinery and Equipment 1,117 491
d} Receivables 424 344
Total 4,655 T.600

3| Maximum sxpasire to the Credit risk

Thus tadle below shows the Company’s maximum exposure Lo the credit risk.
Parikulars As at Asat

March 31, 1024 March 31, 2023
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans 8 Advances (Gross) 2,71,903 2,47,002
Less | Impairment loss allowances 2,682 1,676
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Loans & Advances (Net) 2,69,221 1,45,326
Financial Assets at amortised cost - Investments {Gross) B,259 4,864
Less | Impaisment loss allawances 58 33
Financial Assets at amortised cost - investmants {Nat) B, 201 4,811
Fmanoal Assets at amortised cost - FYOCH (Grass) 10,585
Less ' Impairment loss allowances 2
Financial Assets at amortised cost - FVOL (Net) = 10,583
Total 2,77.422 2,60,740

Credit sk on Cash and Cash equivalents 1 considered to be Nil as these are generably held with leading banks
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38 Financial Risk Management (Continuved)

b} Credit quality anatysis
An impairment analysis i performed at each reporting date based on the facts and circumstances existing on that date to identify expected lasses on

account of time value of money and credit risk. The credit quality of Loans and advances measured st amortised cost Is primarity assessed by the Days Past
Due {DPD) status.

Inputs, ptions and techniques used for esti impairment :

Definitian of Default

In assessing the impalrment of financlal assets under the expected credit loss model, the Company defines default when a loan obligation is 90 days past
due and credit impaired.

Asgessment of significant inarease In credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased significantly since initial 1 ition, the Company iders the DPD status of the laans.

Credit risk |s deemed to have increased significantly when an asset is mere than 30 days past due (DPD}.

Calculation of expected credit losses

Profectus Capital has calculated ECL using three main components: a prabability of default {PD), a loss given default (LGD) and the exposure at defautt
[EAD). ECL is calculated by multiplying the PD, LGD and EAD. For stage 1 assets, the 12 month £CLis calculated. Far assets in stage 2 and 3, Lifetime ECL s
calculated using the fifetime PD.

The key elements in calculation of ECL are defined as follows

PO - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facillty has not been previcusly derecognised and is still in the portfolie. 12 month PD estimation process is dore based on historical
Internal data wherever available. For portfollos where enough historical internal data ls not available, entity has resorted to proxies based on peer
temparisan. While arriving at the PD, the entity also ensures that the factors that affects the macro economic trends are considered to a reasonable
extent, wherever necessary. In case of assets where thera is a significant increase in credit risk, (fetime PD has been applied which is computed based on
survival analysis. For credit impaired assets, a PD of 100% has been applied.

EAD - The Exposure at Defauit represents the gross carrying amount of financial assests at reporting date which indudes principal cutstanding and interest
accrued on reporting date and expected drawdown an committed facility.

LGD - The Loss Given Defsult is an estimate of the loss arising In the case where a default occurs at a given time, It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash fiows due and thase that the lender wouid expect to receive, including from the of any al. it is usuafly expressed as a
percentage of the EAD. The LGD is determined based on fair valuation of collaterals and other relevant factors.

Forward Looking Economic Inputs

The Company incorporates forward lookmng information into and s of whether the credit risk af an instrument has
inceeased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on the consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast
information, the Company ferms a ‘base case’ view of the future di of rel variables such as GDP and Consumer Price Index (CPI}, as
well a5 3 representative range of other pessible forecast scenarios. This process invalves developing two or more economic s and
considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a most likely outcome while the ather scenarios represent more optlmistic
2nd maore pessimistic outcomes.

The followlng table sets out information about the credit quatity of Tinancial assets measured at amortised cost,

Particulars Asat st
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
Gross Stage 1 {DPD< 30 days) Performing asset and 12 month ECL 2,59,602 2,39,753
1ess Impakrment loss allowance 1,231 1,104
Nat Stage 1 Assets 2,58,371 2,38,645
£CL Prov. Coverage 0.47% 0.46%
Gross Stage 2 (30>DPD< 90 days) Under performing assets Increase in credit risk and Lifetime ECL 7975 5273
Less @ Impalrment loss allowance 119 a9
Net Stage 2 Assets 7,355 5,174
ECL Prov, Coverage 1.50% 1.88%
Gross Stage 3 {(DPD>90) Non-performing assets credit iImpalred and lifetime £ECL 4,326 1,976
tess - Impairmeat loss allowance 1,332 473
Net Stage 3 Assets 2,994 1,503
ECL Prov. Coverage 30.78% 23.94%
Total Loans & Advances 2,71,903 247,002
Less - Impalrment loss 2llowance 2,682 1676
Net Loans & Advances 2,69,221 245,326
ECL Provision Coverage 0.99% 0.68%
Note : The Company treats all loans with DPD 0-30 days as stage | assets. Since the PD and LGD applied is same for a 0 DPD asset and an asset with DRD t-
30, the Company has not shown the same seperately
The followling table sets out information about the credit quality of Investments
Particulars As at Asat
March 11 2074 March 31. 2023
Investments {Stage 1):
Gross Investments 8,259 15,3449
Less ' Impairment foss allowance 58 35
Net Ivestments 8,201 15,414
£CL Provision Caverage G.70% 0.2&‘

Write-offs still under enforcament activity
The contractual amount outstanding or loans and advances that were written off during the year ended March 2024, and are still subject to enforcement
activity was Rs, 211,98 lakhs.
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38 Financial Risk Management (Continved)

M In Gross E and credit impai for loans and
The Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss' [ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCL Company follows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes it ¢redit quality since Initlal
recogmnion. Please refer to the accounting policy for details.

| Movement bn Gross Exposure 1o Loans & Advances | Movement in ECL

1 Stage 1 | Stage 2 | Stage 3 | Totat | Stage1 | Stage 2 | Stage3 | Total
Gross Carrying Amount as at 15t April 2022 (Opening Balance) 143,712 7,261 1,142 1,52,155 604 160 203 a1
Add / [Less) : - - - - - - -
- Changes arising due to mavement from lifetime £CL to 12 monthECL : o -
3] Changes arising due ta movement from Ifetime £CL where creditrisk was increased 4,251 -4,251 k] -96
significantly but not credit impaired to 12 month ECL for finanaal asiets
b} Changas arising due 10 movement from lifetime ECL where creditrisk was increased 200 - - 200 - 25 . -28 -

significantty and oredit impalred to 12 manth ECL for financial assets

- Changes arising due to movement from 12 momnth ECL to Iifetime £C1, ; - =

2} Changes arising due to movement from i2manth ECL to lifetime £CL for financial assets -3,677 3,577 -15 15
where credht risk has increased significantly but not credit Impakred

b) Changes arising due to mavement from 12manth ECL to lifetine ECL for financial assets <588 - 458 1,046 - -2 -10 13 -
where ¢redit rlsk has increased significantly and credit impaired

- Assets origlaated or purchased 1,69.943 446 298 1,70,693 Bl11 a 128 9437
- Assets derecognised during the year -44,704 -719 - 350 -45,773 -147 -15 -115 -
- Net Amount recovered dunng the year -29,394 -6B3 - -30,073 -176 -8 -3 =187
- Unwinding of discount - - . . - - . -
-Changes In Risk Parameters (eg- PD and LGD) - -113 52 m 211
Gross Camrying Amount as at 34st March 2023 {Closing Balance) 2,39,753 5,273 1976 2,47,002 1,087 99 473 1,659
Gross Carrylng Amount as at 1st April 2023 {Opening Balance) 239,753 5,273 1,976 2,47,002 1,087 5 473 1,659
Add { {Less} : o E -

- Changes arising due to movement from lifetime ECL to 12 monthECL: -

a) Changes arising due to movement fram lifetime ECL where credit risk was increased 1,985 -1,985 34 34

significantly but not credit impalred to 12 month ECL for financial assets

b) Changes arking due to movement from lifetime ECL where creditrisk was increased 130 84 «214 = 13 8 =21

significantly and credit impaired to 12 month ECL for finantial assets

- Changes arising due to movement from 12 month ECL to [ifetime ECL: - - £ - - - -

a3} Changes arising due to movement from 12month ECL te lifeume ECL for financlal assets -6,170 6.170 - = - X7 7 = -

where credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired

b) Changes arising due to movement from 12manth ECL te lifetime £CL for financial assets -2,169 - 500 2,669 - -9 -1 20

where credit risk has increased significantly and credit impaired

- Assets originated or purchased 1,78,446 1,020 166 1,719,632 956 19 16 991
- Assets derecognised during the year - 86,492 -1,158 - 406 - 88,056 -382 -22 -167 -571
~Net Amount recovered during the year - 65,881 -929 135 - 66,675 - 292 -9 +32 -333
- Unwinding of discount o = = = = = = -

- Changes in Risk Parameters (eg: PD and LGD) - - - 186 39 1,043

Balance as at March 31, 2024 2,59,602 7,975 4,326 2,71,903 1,194 116 1332
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el M In Gross E e and credit impalrment for Investments {Continued)

The Company uses ‘Expected Credit Loss’ {ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of Financial Assets measured at amortised cost or FVTOCL Company follkows a ‘three-stage’ model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since intial

recognition. Please refer 1o the accounting policy for detals

I

in Gross & to

| n ECL

|

suged ]| Total

Gross Camying Amount as st 1st Aprll 2022 (Opening Balance|

Add / (Less} :

- Changes arising duw to movemant from [Hetime ECL to 12 month ECL :

3) Changes ansing due to movernent from Ifetime ECL where credit nsk was increased
significantly but not credit impaired 10 12 manth ECL for financial assets

b} Changes arsing due ta movemaent from idetime ECL where credn risk was ingeased
significantly and credit impaired to 12 month ECL for financial assets

- Changes arising due to movement from 12 month ECL to fifetime ECL

4a) Changes arising due to movement from 12menth ECL to lifetime ECL for financial assets
where credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired

b) Changes arising due ta movement from 12month ECL to hfetime ECL far financial assets
where credit risk has Increased significantly and credit impared

- Assets originated or purchased

- Assets darecognised during the yaar

- Net Amaunt recovered during the yasr

- Changes in Risk Pacamaters (ag: PD and LGD)

Stage1 | Stage 2 | Stage 3 |
M1 . .

15,443
3711

Total | Stage 1| Stage 2 |
26

Xl 3 26

16,449 35 o a5
-8711 2% - - -2B

Gros: Carrying Amount a5 at 315t March 2023 (Cosing Balance}

15,449 - o

15,449 35 - . 11

Gress Carvying Amount as st 15t Apeil 2023 (Opening Balance)

Add [ (Less) :

- Changes arising dus 1o mavermnant from liketime ECL to 12 month ECL:

3} Changes arising due 10 movement from Idetime ECL where credit risk was increased
segnificantly but not credit impared to 12 month ECL for financal assats

b) Changes arising due to movement from lifetime ECL where credit risk was increased
sgnificantly and credit impaired to 12 month ECL for finandial assets.

- Changes arising due 1o movemant from 12 month ECL, to ifetime EQL:

3) Changes arising due to movemens from 12month ECL to hfetime ECL For financial assets
where credit nsk has increased significantly bul not credit impaired

b) Changes arising due to movemnent from 12month ECL to lifetime ECL for financial assets
where credit risk has Increased significantly and credit impaired
- Assets originated o purchased

- Assets derecognised during the year

- Net Amount recovered during the year

- Changes in Risk Parsmaters (eg: PD and LGD) AERO)

15,449

8,259 -

-15.449 -

15,449 s - - 1]

8,259 54 . 58

- 15449 35 . -35

Batance s at March 31, 2024 L

B,25% -

8,159 58 - - [T
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3B Financial Risk Management {Continued)

¢} in Gross and credit t for of Loans and Ad {Ce

i Movement I;| Undrawn Committment of Loans & Advances | Movement In ECL
Stage 1| Seage2 | Stage 3 | Total | Stage 1| Stage Z | Stage 1] Total
Gross Carrying Amount as at 1st April 2022 (Opening Balance) 2,930 a1 2t 2,503 8 1 2 11
Add [ (Less) : 3 - .
- Changes arising due to moverent from lifetime £CL to 12 monthECL :
a) Changes arising due to movement from lifetime ECL where creditrisk was increased ] -0 E 0 [}

significantly but not credit impaired ta 12 month ECL for financial assets

b Changes arising due to movement fram Ifetime ECL where creditrisk was increased z

significantly and credit impaired to 12 month ECL for finandal assets

- Changes arising due to movement from 12 month ECL to lifetime ECL

) Changes arising due to mavament from 12month ECL tolifetime ECL for financial assets 3 3 . -a 0
where credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired

b) Changes arising due to movement from 12month ECL w lifetime ECL for financial assets
where credit risk has increased significantly and credit impaired

- Assets originated or purchased 6,758 6,758 27 27
- Assats derecagnised during the year -1,710 41 =22 -1,77 o -1 2 10
-Net Amount recavered during the year - 2,902 3 . -2,893 -11 Q -31
- Changes in Risk Parametars {eg: PD and LGD) - - - a 1] o
Gross Carrying Amaunt a3 at 31st March 2023 (Closing Balance) 4,584 5 o 4,589 17 a 17
Grass Carrying Amount a5 at 15t Apell 2023 {Opening Balance) 4,583 5 ¢ 4,533 17 0 17
Add / {Less) :

- Chenges arising due to movemant from IHetime ECL to 12 month ECL : -

a) Changes arising due to movement from lifetime ECL where credit risk was increased - =

significantly but not credit impaired to 12 month ECL for financial assets

b) Changes arlsing due to mavement from lifetime ECL where creditrisk was increased - -
significantly and ¢redit impaired to 12 month ECL for financial assets

- Changes arlsing due tc movemant from 12 month ECL to [fetime ECL :

a) Changes arising due to movement from 12month ECL to lifetime ECL for financial assets -101 101 o [i]

'whera credit risk has increased significantly but not credit impaired

b} Changas arising due ta movement from 12month £CL to lifetime £CL for financial assets - - - - c y -
where credit risk has Increased significantly and credit impaired

- Assats originated or purchased 5417 BO 5,497 2% 2 - 27
- Assets derecognised during the year - 1,540 -5 . - 2,545 -9 0 - -9
+ Net Amount recovered during the year 342 - 352 7

- Changes in Risk Parameters {(eg: PD and LGD) - 3 1 - -2

Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,702 181 [ 7,683 37 3 5 40
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38 Financial Risk Management (Continued)

d) Cellateral and ather credit enhancements
Company would generally have its credit exposures backed by securities, either primary or secondary coliateral. Lending Policy of the Company prescribes
Asset cover narms ard collateral guidelings for its various praguct offering. The amount and type of collateral required d ds on an of the
credit risk of the counterparty and product offered.
Company grants loans agalnst collateral of real estate | lal and residential preperties.
As collateral is 3 source of mitigating credit risk, assessment of the condition of the securities and their value is undertaken on regular basis. There were no
significant changes in the coll ! policy of the v during the Flnancial Year 2023-2024.

a) Cradit Concentration

The Company’s loan portfolla {5 primarily concentrated as detailed below :

Particulars Asat As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Real Estate 0% 0%
Others 100% 100%

Note - The Loan against property loans disbursed by the Company are working capital loans with collateral as property, Since the repayments for the loans are
from the business Income of the borrower and rot from the property, the same are not treated as real estate exposures.

T} Ugukdity Risk

tiquidity risk is the risk that the Company will eacounter difficulties [n meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are selected by
dellvering cash or other financial assets. The Company's approach ta managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to

meet its llabilities when they are due, under both normal and d condith ith incurning unacceptable losses of risking darmage to the Company’s
reputation.

Comgpany has in place an Asset-liability Management Committea (ALCO) which ions a5 the of i unit for ging the Sheet within the
performance and risk parameters laid down by the 8oar¢ and Risk Commitiee of the Board. ALCO reviews Asset Liabiiity strategy and Balance Sheet
management In relation to asset and liabllity profile. ALCO ensures that the objectives of liquidity 8 are met by Htoring the gaps in the varicus
time buckets, declding on the source and mix of liabliities, setting the maturity profile of the incremental assets and Habllities etc.

Key principles adogted in the Company’s app ta ging liquidity risk includi

a) Monitoring the C /s liquidity position on a regular basis, using a combination of contractual and behavioural modelling of talance sheet and cash

flow information.

)} Maintaining a high guality liquid asset partfolio or maintaining undrawn bank lines.

¢ Qperating a prudent funding strategy which ensures apprapriate diversification and limits maturity concentrations,

The Company’s principat sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents, liquid asset portfotio like Investments in quoted debt securitles and the cash flow
that is generated from operation.

The foliowing are the remainlng contractual maturitles of financlal liabilities at the reporting date. The ameunts are gross and undiscounted, and include
interest acerued Ll the reporting date,

As at Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Debt Sacurities 8,707 5,007 7,764 8,189 29,667
Horrowings other than debt securlties 90,769 41,584 23,169 14,565 1,70,087
Trade and Other Payables 893 - - - 893
Other Financial Liabilitias 2,050 1,340 1,419 1,131 5,540
Total 1|01|419 47& 32‘351 Bllls IIO_SIS |
As at Contractusl cash flows

March 31, 2023 Upto 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Tatal
Debt Securities 6,902 5,031 3,445 3,929 10,307
Borrowings other than debt securities 62,691 63,024 24,135 9,834 1,595,684
Trade and Other Payables 865 - - 865
Other Financial Liabilities 3,988 1,0%6 1,300 2,367 8,751
Total 74.44.2 'N_"Ei ng 16|130 l|89|607 i

Iil) Market Risk

Market risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flaws of financial instruments will flurtuate due to changes in market varlables such as
interest rates, forelgn exchange rates and equity prices.
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38 Financial Risk Management {Conlinued)

tv] interest rate risk
The Company’s policy is 1o minimize imerest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing, At March 31, 2024, the Company is exposed Lo changes in

market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable rates. The Company's i in fixed depasits all pay fixed interest rates,

Particulars As ot Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Varlable rate Asscts

Leans 157,888 1,68,174
Varable rate Liabilities

Baerowings {other than debl securities) 1,632,051 1,50,784
Flxed rate Uabilities

Barrowings {other than delbt securities) 7.208 8.490
Total Borrowings 1,70,259 1,59,274
Sensitivicy

The sensitrvity of the statement of profit and loss 15 the effect of the changes in market interest rates on Borrowings{othes than debt secunties) Below is the
sensitivity of profit and loss in interest rates.

Interast ratg As ot As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Leans

Interest rates - increase by 0.50% 789 gal
Intérest rates — decrease by 0 50% 789 - B4l
Borrowings {other than dabt securities)

Interest rates — increase by 0.50% -B15 - 734
Interest rates — decrease by 0 50% 815 734

* Holding all other variobles constonl

Interest rate nsk is managed prmanly by monitaring the senstaaty of expected net interest income ['NII'}) under varying interest rate scenanos. This
monitonng is undertaken by ALCO on ragular hasis. The sensitivities thown are indicative and basad on simplified scanarios.

39 Operating Sagmant

There 15 no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 on '‘Operaling Segments’ n respect of the Company The (ompany operates in 2 single segment only
There are no operations outside India and hence there is no external revenue or assets which require disclosure.

Ng revenue from transactions with 3 single externa! customer amounted to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue in year ended 31 March 2024 or 31
March 2023,

Since the business operations of the Company are primarity concentrated in India, the Company 5 considered to operate only in the domestic segment and
thercfore there is no reportable geographic segment.

40 Contingent Liabilities

Particulars At at Asat
March 34, 2024 March 31. 2023

Commitments

I} Estimated amount of contracts remaning to be executed on capital account {net of advances) = =

i} Ungrawn Committed Credit lines 23,086 12,800

Total 23,086 12,800

The Company has a process wheredy penodically all fong-term contracts are d ler matenal f ble losses. At the year end, the Company did not have

any long term contracts including derivatrue confracts for which there were amy maternisl loresceabie losses

The Company does not have any litigations or cases filed against the Company

W
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41

Disclosure Pursuant to RBI Notification no R8I/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.Nn.109/22.10.106/20158-20

Assat Classification as per RBf Norms Assut GrossCarrying  Loss Allowances Net Carrying Pravisi DIt
clastification  Amoumt as per {Provisions) ss A quired aspar b tnd AS
as per Ind AS Ind AS required undar IRACP narms 109 provisions

109 Ind AS 109 and IRACP norms
1 2 3 4 (5=3-4} & (T+4-6)
Peripiming assers
Standard Stage 1 2.59,602 1,194 2,58,408 1,040 154
Stage 2 7,975 116 7.85% 3z B4

Subtotal 2,67,577 1,310 2,66,267 1,072 238

Non-Performing Assets (NPA]

Substandard Stage 3 2,907 574 1,933 863 106

Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage 3 932 184 748 394 -210

1to 3 years Stage 3 487 174 313 338 - 164

More than 3 years Stage 3 - - - -

Subtotal for doubtiul 1,419 58 1,081 732 -373

Lass

Subtotal for NPA 4,326 1,332 2,934 1,600 - 268

Other ilems such as guaraniees, loan Stage 1 7,702 a? 7,665 - kY
commitments, etc. which are in the scope of

Ind AS 109 but not cowered ungder current Stage 2 181 2 178 ) 3

Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Stage 3 . . . R

Provislioning {{RACP) norms

Subtotal 7,683 4 7,943 - 40

Total Stage 1 2,67,304 1,231 2,66,073 1,040 19

Stage 2 8,156 119 8,037 32 87
Stage 3 4,316 1,332 2,994 1,600 - 268
Totsl 2,79, 786 682 277,104 672 10
Note

Since the total impairment allowances under Ind A% 109 is higher than the total provisioning required under IRACP (induding standard asset provisioning} as at
31 March 2024, no amount 15 required to be transferred to ‘Impairment Reserve’. The gross carrying amount of asset as per Ind AS 109 and Loss allowances
{Provisicns} th includes i acrual on net carrying value of stage - 3 assets as permitted under ind AS 109. While, the provisions required as per IRACP
norms does not include any such interest s interest accrual on NPAs is not permitted under IRACP norms.

The balance in the “impairment Reserve’ {as and when crexted) shall not be reckoned for regulatory capital. Further, no withdrawals sha¥l be permitted from this
teserve without prior permission from the Departmnt of Supenvision, RBI.

As at 31 March 2024, there are no laan accounts that are past due beyond 90 days but not treated a3 impaired, i.e. all 90+ ageing joan accounts have been
tlastified a3 Stage-3 and no dispensation s considered in stage-3 classification.

The below table provides the count and amount of lasn outstanding as on March 31, 2024
Stage Count Value

Stage 1 S,B28 2,859,602

Stage 2 126 7,975

Stage 3 63 4,326

Totsl 017 2,71,903
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Dlsclosur- rolllcd to Schedule to the balancs sheat of the Company, as required by Annax IV of the Master Direction - Non-Banking Finsnclal

- B Nan-Cepoilt taking Campany (Reserve Bank) Pirections, 2016 issued by the Reserve Bank af india {"RBI") vide
their Notification No. RBI/ONBR/2016-17/45 Master Directian ONBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated Septembar 1, 2016 {the "Notiication™)

Farticulars Amvount Duistanding Amaunt Overdus
Aamt L1 As at Asnl
March 31. 2024 March 51, 223 March 31, 2014 March 31, 102)
Liabilitiet Sids
(8] Leans and mdvances availed by the non banking financials company
indusive of intetdst accrued thereaa but not pald -
2} Debenfures
1] Secured 2H,4b1 15,308
i) Unsecured
{Other than Isbang within the meanng cf public depasds!
bl Deferred Credits
£} Teimioans 143477 1,i2.621
dl  Inter-corporaté Loans and Borrowsng
el Cammercizl Papsr
f Public Deposnts - .
g Other Loans 26 78} 28,654
{T}  Brusk up of [1f) above (Dutstanding Public Depoitts ingiusnar of intergsl
zruad |hergon but not paid)
3} Inthe lorm of unsecured debentures
Bl nthe form of partly secured debentures
) Other Pubdic Ceposns
Fartlculars Armount Qutstanding
A pt Rt
Sarch 31, 2034 Wasch 1L, 2023
Assets Sude
(3} Break up of loans and Iuting il ather than thois intluded in (4) belaw [Gros Amount)
a  Secured 2,71,903 47,602
o) Umetured )
3,274,903 2,472,001
Particulan Amount Outstanding
Asat As 2t
March 11, 2024 March 31, 2023
[4)  Bewak up of lyased assats and stock on hire and cther assets counting towards AFC dstivithes:
{i]  Lease aysats snchoding lease rentat: under tundry dedtars
3 Francel bease
bl Opevating lease
[} Stock on hine including hure charges under sundry debtors
8] Assels on Hire
] Repostested Assats
{ui)  Cther koant COuNTINg IDwards AFC acthitid
a} Loans whare 250ets have baen repotieised
b} Loans othar than (1) above
Particulars Amount Ouestanding
Ax ot As
Maich §1. 2014 March 31. 10131
{S)  Break up of investments |
8l Curranl invastmants
11 Quoted
1} Shares
3) Equity (s1ock inrade)
b} Preference
i} Debentures and bonds 7,843 1%
) Unas of Mutual fund
) Government wacurdey

v)

Others
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Notes to the Financial Statements rcommuess
for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Amaunt in RS Lakhg

41 Distlosure related 10 Schedule ta the balance sheet of the Company, as required by Annex IV of the Master Dlrection - Mon-Banking Finansial
Company - Systemically Important Nen-Depesit 1aking Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 lssued by the Reserve Bank of India {"RBI”) vide
thelr Notification No. RBI/DNBR/2016-17/4S Maiter Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.113/2016-17 dated September 1, 2015 {the *Notification”]
(Continued)

Particulars. Amount Outstanding
As st As
Wiarch 11. 2024 Warch 31, 201%
[5)  reak vp of levaitments :
27} Unquoted
i} Shares
a) Equity [stock-in trade}
b} Praference
i} Debenturet and beads
i) Units of Mutual fund
M| Government wcuritles
v} Others (Pass through certificates) 410 €29

b} Llong term investments
1) CQuoted
iy Shares
3) Equity
b} Preference
ii} Debentures snd bonds
i) Unas of Mutusl fund
] Government 1ecurities
v) Othevs
2)  Ungquoted
I} Sharey
2) Equrty
b) Preference
i) Peherlutes and bonds
ul)  Units of Mutual fund
¥ Government sacurid
v} Dthers [Pass through certificates) 91 1724

Tatal irvestments 2,350 18,604

(5] group-wite dassify of asputs Ml d a1 In {3) snd (4) sbove: [Net of Pravision)
Satured Unsecurad Toral
Particsan Asat Anm Arwe Ag ar Ara Aat
Mirth 11, 2024 March 31. 2028 Sdarch 31, 3024 March 312013 March 31 1014 March 11, 2023

a)  Related pactrts
1] Subswdianes
2}  Compames i the SamP group
3] Other related panes

b} Other than related parties. 163,121 24532 - 2,692 245326

{7 iowetlor group-wice classification of sl imeitments {current and long 1erm) ln shares and securit it (Both quated and nquated ¢ududing stock in trade}

Mackel value / Faic Voloe or HAY Book Value [Fel of provisions]
Pacticuian Asat As 2t Asat As ot
March 31,2014 #brth 31,2023 March 31. 1024 Miarch 31, 2023
a}  Related parties
1} Subsidiacles
2} CompanHi In tha sama group
3}  (nherrelated parties

b}  Other than related parthes. 8,350 15,604 8,292 15568

Tota — M Des e Lo
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Notes to the Financial Statements icancirues)
for the yeor ended Morch 31. 2024

Amauntin Rs Lakhs

43 Relstad party disclosurss :

A Ust of Relsted Parties ard thair relatiormship:
) Ulimate Holding Company

Actis Slobal4 LP

W] Holding Company
ACTIS PCInvestment {Mauntus) Limvled
ACTIS PC (Mpuritivg) Limited

#| Diructors
. K ¥ Seinivasan
M. Pratik sain
My Asanka Haren Ediimunm Rodnge.
Mr. Sudarzhan Sampathtumar
M. i Ab.

br) Key Masageriel Person
Mur. KV Srinfvasan - Whole Time Director & CEO
Mr. Sandip Parikh - CFO
My, Mitir Pangasiar - C5

B. Trankactions during Lhe yedr BAd cloding Galancks &3 0N Balance sheet e with reisted partes:

Particulars Holding Comparey Koy Manageriad Person
Eaquity shase Capleal
a} Dpening batance a5 on Apnl 1, 2023 73,700
{61,672)
) Iteued during tha year -
{12.019)
<} Balance as 2t March 31, 20344 73,700
{r3,700)
Share Rased Paymeents
K¥ Srintvasan 74
(740)
Sandip Parikh 183
{183)
Saisry Paid
K ¥ Srinevatan Q9
(33,
Sandyp Parikh m
{191)
Nitin Pangarkar 29
24}
Notet

1 The sbove diaciosed transactions enterad dusing the period of exdstence o cetated party retationsheg. The balances and trassachons are nal tisciaiad befolre
existencs of relatad party relationship and ahter cessation of related party (elationship.
1 Figares in brackes (| oenotes previous yes aumbers

a4 Capital to Risk Assets Aatio {CRAR}

Ratle Numerstor Danginingter % Varlance Remon

CRAR (%} -8 56%

CRAR - Tidr | Capital (%} Netawned fund | Rtk weighted 7.76%

assats
CRAR - Tiar |l Capital (%) Agaregate Tiee Il | Risk weighted -42.42% |Dacrars n ratio
Capital Issets dua bo increase in

rigk weighted
LU -]

Amount ol subordinated debt rased as
Tiar-H apital

Amount raised by issue af Perpetual
Dabt Instrumants




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements rcortmued)
far the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

Amount in Rs, Lakhs

45 Asset Liability Managemnant - Maturity pattem of certain itams of Assets and Liablities

Particulars [ Asmts
Borrouings from Mprket  Forelgn Currency Advanor Wvestments  Forwign Currency
Banks Sorrcredags Sorowings Amets
1dayto T days 1B.71% 1 3,768 61
15.375) {302) (4,585) (6)
8o 18 days e 91 5677 186
(229) . (3.207) -
15 days to 30731 days 4,312 %72 12,691 356
{1,4a8) (630} 18,115} 10,8801
Oves 1 month ta 2 months 4,224 960 - 21,08 50
{2,923 {926) E {14,025) 15631
Over 2 menths to 1 months. 11,99 1,783 c 13817 1,253
(6,838} (2,501} {14,292} {2H)
Owed 3 months to & months 14,259 2,737 153016 2125
(11.44)} (3338} c {14,454} (1,049}
Qver 6 months 1o 1 year ®m 6,447 2.7 2,659
(16.229) {6.526) (21877} {1.150)
Orver 1year o 3 years 61,341 15,184 H6.085 1371
(79.697) {17.028) (22,756} {1567}
Over 3 yeurs ta 5 years 19334 B0 45870 a1
(11,533} (619} {44,025} {154}
Qver 5 years 3,310 63,478 .
{1,651} {63,585} =
Tota) 168343 200 : LILps 135
Total [Previous year) (1.47,312) {31,870} v {1.47,002) {15,603}

Mote. The Company hat Bquidity i the 1o of Ford depouts Snd undeiwn crddit f200t0c whsch £an ba uted St aay ting ntérval.

46 Disclosure on Liquidity Risk

i) Funding Concentration bated on significant counterparty (hath depauds and borrawings)

Sr.  Number of Significant Counterparties Arnaunt (in kakhs) % of Total % of Totsl
Ne Deposits Usbilities
1 33 1,58,720 . S0.94%
H) Top 20 large deposits - This is not appilacble to the Company a1 we ane & non deposit taking NBFC
Amount (in lsihe) % of Totsl
it) Top 10 Borrewings 74,020 1225%
w] Funding C basad on signedicant i / product
S¢ Nama of instrumant/ Product Arnawnt {in lnidw) % of Totad
No inhilitied
t  Long Termiasns 14d 477 44 .00%
2 working Capital Demand Loans 4963 275%
3 Owerdrak againgt Fieed Daposity A48 S.46%
4 Cash Credh FacHity a Q.00%
5 Non - Convertitia Debanturss 8380 2.5T%
§  Secured Barrowings (Securitised Pool} 20,081 6.16%
y) Distlosure Fae institutional satup for Kquidity risk are not 1a the O 28, the has not inzued s Commercial Papas o Non-

Comvertible Cabentures having original maturity of less than 1 yasr

M




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements icoatnued
Jor the yegr ended Morch 11 2024

Amaunt ia Rs Lakhs

4T Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Name of Rating Agency Care Ratngs

Rating Assigned CARE AfSLable {Previdus year :CARE A-fStable]

Rating Assigned for Long tetm Bank loans and Non Convertiie Debentures

Name of Rating Agency LRSI

Rating Assigned CRISIL A-/Fositrve & CRISIL AL [Prevsous year CRIML A-/Stable & CRISIL A1)
Rating Assigned lar Long term Bank lgans and Non Converlible

45  Investments

Fartikulan 1023-14 0131-13
Value of investments

Graoss Value of Investments

Al ininda 8,350 15,604
b} Gutsie india

]

Provisons for Deprecation
] nindia 58 35
b} Gutixde Inda .
) et Value of Investments

) Ininds 8,292 15,569

b} Quinde indu

of P held towards dep on

1) Opening Balance it 5
W} Add: Pravisions made during the yoar " | s
i} Less. Write o / Write back of excess provition during the year B 26
w} Closang Balance 58 kL)

43 Expotures

Particulars 2013-24 02213

1} Exposurs to Resl estate sactor
Direct Enpowure
) Resdentual Merigage
Lending fully secured by mortgages on ixncdantial property that i o will be occupred by the bofrowdt of (hat s L -
rented Exposure would alko mclude non-fund based (NF8) Emuts.
i} Commerci Real Extate
Lending secvrad by mongages on commercl real estate (olfice buddings, retadd spage, multipurpove commercial
ltitamh i i mult commercial o , industral of h space,
hatels, tand acauisition, development snd tonslructionetc) Exposure would ako Indude aon-fundbased{NFa)limite
i) Inwestrments in Mongage Backed Sequrities {MB3) and other securitised exposures «
a) Resideatial
&l Commuercai Real Evtate

Indirect
1) Fund based and non-fund-based expasures on Natonal Housing Bank and Housing Finance Companes

Totsl Exposwra to Raat Estave Sactoy

Mote : The Loan agamnst proparty loans disburied by the Company sre worung capital loans with collateral as property. Since the repaymants for the Joans are from
the butiness ncame of 1he Borrower and not (ram tha peaperty, the same Jrd NOT LFEANEC 35 real £51ILE BADOTUTES.




Profectus Capital Private Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements iconvinueai
Jor the year ended March 31, 2004

Amount In Rs. Lakhs

49 Enposures [Continued)

Particulsrs 1023-24 -3
2] Expoture to Capital Market
i) direct investment in equity shares, ible bonds, ble deb. and units of equity-o¢iented mutual
hunds the corpus of which 15 not exdusively invested in corporate debt;
i} advanoes against shares / bonds / debentures or other tecunties or on dean basis to indiwdusls for iInvestment in
shares (including IPCs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-criented mutual
funds;

iit) advances for any other gurpases where shares or convertbls bonds or convertible debantures or units of equity
orlented mutyal fundt are takan as primary security,

iv) advances for any other purpases to the axtent secured by the collacers! tacurity of shares or tenvarntible bonds o
convertible debertures ar units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity orlented mutual funds "does not tully cover the
advances,

v) secured and untecured ad: [ 2] s and g tsued on behalf of stockbr okers and market
makers;

w) loans sanctioned tq colporates aganst the security of shaies / bonds / debentures or other securibies of on dean
basis tor meeting promoter's contribution to the aquity of new ies in anticipation of rasing

wii bridge laans to companles against expected equity flows / Issues;

vii Undenwriting commitments takan up by the NBFCx in respect of primary issue of shares or convartible bonds or
converbble debentures or units of equity oriented mutusl funds
in} Finanging 1o stockbrokers lot margin trading
i All exp to Alt; Fundts, .
(1} Category |
{ii) Category It
{iii} Category 1l
Total Exposurs to Caphal Market E

50 P and Contil ies
Brodh up of 'Provisions snd Contingencies’ shown under the head Enpenditure in Profit and Loss Accaunt 2013-24 A3
i} Provi for depr on o 9
1i} Provision towards WPA® “a a1
) Provision made lowards Income Lax 1,458 1,076
Iv) Othes Provision and Contingencies {with details) . -
v} Provision for Standard Assats® 147 M
* The company follws ECL provitioning and henes stage 1 and stage 2 atcets are considered In Previslan for Standard Ascets snd stage 3 assats are considesed In
Provision towards NPA. Except provision for income tax, other have been under of Financlal inthe & of Peafit and
loss Account.

51 Concentration of Depusits. Advances, Expasures and NPAs

1} Coacentration of Advances

Particulars N1s 02223
Total Advances to twenty largast borrowers 18,207 18,275
Percantage of Advances to twanty largest to Total of the appl NBFC ™ 7%

2) Cancentration of Exposures®

Pasticulars 2023-24 202223
Total £xpoturs to twenty Iargait boriowers / cuslomers 18,299 20,278
Percentage of Exposures te twenty largest bormowers / cuttoment ta ™ %
Tolal Exp ol the MBFC on 3/ 1

* Invertment in bonds are not indudad o axp ssthe holds the sama not for Long term Investmant but for Liquidity purposes

‘O{acfu.g-o\
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Amount In Rs. Lakhs

53

51 G ol Adn Expasures and NPAS (Continued)
3} Concantration of NPAY
Farticulars a13-24 202r-21
Teral Exposure 1o 1o four NPA 3ccounts 1738 388
4} Sector-wise NPAs
Sactor 202324 2022-23
Total Exposurs Gross NPAs Purcantage of Totel Enposure Gross NPAa Percantage of
(includes on (R wrova) Gross NPAS to total {ncludes on {R crore) Grozs NPAs to cotal
balance sheet and exnposure lnthat | belencs thest and axponse in that
ci-balance sheet sector off-balanca sheet ctor
axgosure) Suposurn}
Agrcyiture and Abed Actvities ar 0.00% 80z - 0 00%
Industry 114,454 LS 151% 1.04.207 450 046%
Services 157,407 2,599 165% 154.950 1496 0.97%
Pértonal Loans 0.00% a.00%
Other Loans 0.00% 0.00%
Mavement of NPAs
Particulars 201324 1022-23
1] Net NPAS to Net Advances (%] 1.11% 051%
W) Movements of NPAS {Grods)
&} Cpening Batance 1,976 1,182
&) Additions duning the year 2910 1,344
<) Reductions. during the year 620 350
d) Clasing balance 4327 1,976
iis) Movements of NPA1 (Net)
) Opaning Balance 1,503 379
b) Additians dunng the year 1.925 34
€} Reductions during the year 432 410
di Cloturg balance 1,946 1,503
L] of Tar NPAs 2 Sons an sseLs)
) Opevrung Balance 473 A3
b) Frovisions made durmng (he yeasr 1.045% =10
) Write-off / wrile back of excess provisions 188 140
o) Ciasing balance 1330 473
Discl " p to Bank of India ification RBI2020-21/17 DOR.NG.BP.BC/4/21.04.048/2020-22 dated August 05, 2020 pertaining to
Resoiution Framework {or COVIO-13-related Stress
Typa of Borrower Mumbar ol where plan has been Vaha of sccowms rertructured under this scheme
implemented under this window
A LT Nt
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Notes to the Financial Statements rcontisve:
for the vear ended Morch 11, 2014

Amount in R1. Lakhs

S Disclosurs pursuant 1o Reserve Bank of India notification RBI/DOR/2021.22/26 DOR STR.REC.51/21 04 043/2071.12 datad faptemhbor 24, 2021

perinining to Master Direction — Reserve Bank of Indis (Transfer of Laan Euposures) Olrections, 2021

SeNe Particulans

aggregate Princ:pal outstanding of loans Acqured [in Lakhs)
i Aggregate conswdersaon pd (0 Lakths
& Weghted average balance matludty of loans (In years
»  Wesghted average holding period of Loans [In yeary)
wi Retention of benefical ecoonomic interest (in %)
v Coverage of Tangibie secutity caverage {In X}
vh_Rating-wise dhstribubtion ef 1ates losns (In Lakhs

From NREC'S
202324 2012-13
4,069 2478
4.069 2474
s »x
2 17
e Ey
a7a% 169%
NA NA

55 Disclosure pursuant te Reserve Banh of India notification RBI/DOR/2021-22/85 DOR.STR.REC.53/21.04.177/1021-22 dated 24 September 2021 for

Nan-STC Securitisation Tranmactions

$r. He Pardculan
1 Haof SPEs holdng sssets for i ty < Origh v the
1 Towsl smount of seturitised 81sets 33 per books of tha SPEs

3 Tatal amount of expotred retdined by the origanator 1o comply with MRA as on the date of balance theet
8) Off-balance shedt expotures
First Lass
Others
b} On-balance sheet expoturet
First Lot
Cthers

4 Amount ol lo U athes than MRR
3l Off bafance sheet exposures.
1) Exposure to own Lecuritisations
FirstLons
Others
i £xposure to third party securitisations.
First Lass
Others
b} On-balance sheet expotures
{) Exposure to own se¢uriticaliont
First Lass.
Others
#) Bpodure to third party securitisations
firstlass
Others
5 Sale consideration recewed for tha tecwined assets
and gainflass on sale on account eftecurisation
6 form and quantuim {outstandiag vakue] of secvices provided by wiy of, liquidity support, post-securitHation dsset
serviting, et¢.
7 Performance of facility pravided Pleass provide separately far each facllity vit. Credit enhancement, liguidity
support, servicing agent stc. Méntlon percent In bracket as of totst valug of facliity provided.
a) Amount pasd
b} Repayment feceived
£} Outstanding amoynt
& Average defaule rats of portfokios observed in the past
9 Amouat and nember of 2dditianal/Top up loan fiven on tame uaderiying Astet.
a) Amount
b} Humbar
10 Investor complaintt
) Directly/indirectly raceivad
b} Dicectiy/indirectly recetved

1023-14

2363
1.088

33133

2.361
300%

2022-13

14,462

1,240

15187

1240
158%
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AMount sn RS Lakhs

56 Transferred financial assets thal are nol derecognised in their entirety

A Securitisation

The Company has wansferred cerlam pools of lodn recenvables backed by underhpng assets by entering inta secwitnation transacbons with the Special
Purpote Vehicle Trusts [SPV Trust] spansered by Banks fo¢ recertd in 2ath atthe incepticon ¢f the transaction.

The Company, beng Orignatar af thate loan recervables, aho acts 335 Serveer with 2 of ol from #ts bottowers and
deposiling the same :n Collection and Payout Account makntained by the SPY Trust for making scheduled payouts ta the mvestors in Pass Through Certificates
(PTC5) 1330£d Uy tNE 5PV Trust. TNese seCuniusation ransacuons aho requires the Company to provid e for first boss credit snhancement in vanous forms, cash
coliater, subscription ta subordinated PTCs wtc. as credit supportt in the event of shoetfalt in collaciions from underying lean contracts. By virtue of axlstence
of credit gnhancement, the Company h axposad o <redit risk, Bamng tha expected losses that wili ba incurred an the translerred Ioan recetvables to the extent
of the credit anhancement provided

I wiewe of the above, the Company has retained subitantially Ml tha rHid and iewards of awnerthip of the financial atiet and thereby dods Aot Mmeet the
derecogndion Crenia 33 set out m ind AS 109 ConsiHration receivad » tha Lransaeton i pr B g under § " under Note 14 (o)

The detaily of hinancial asse1s that have been transfedred in 4uch & way that part or ail of the transferred financial assets de aat qualily for derecogmtion,
together with the associaked Habilitees:

Particulars 013-24 2012-23
Campng amonand of et a <oH 19,501 14061
Cammpng amount of d %abik (] a1 amorored cost) 10,081 14,083
Fair value of assets 21,272 14462
Fair value of associated Babidtses 23,272 14,462
Nat posrtion at Fair Value

B Transter of Losns
Details of keans translerred [/ scquired dunng the yedr énded March 31 2024, pursuant 1a R8I orcudar RAVDOR 2011 .22/86 /DOR STR RECSL21 04 043/2021
22 dated September 24, 2021,
al  Details of boans notn defauit acquired through assignment i grven below
Particulars From NBFC [Amt in lacs]
2023-14 2032-13
| Aggregate Prineipal outsianding of koans tranglerred {in 2474
Agpreg# ¢ comicderstion received (n Lacs] 1474
Wesghted svarage matuirty of loans (n yeen}
Wesgfiied Svivage holding period of Loan [ yRars)
of interest (n %
Cowarage of Tangibhe security covarage (in 5}
Rating-we distnbution of rates losns [In Laca}
bl Details ol loans not in defawit ransterred through astgnment is given balow
Pasticulars
023-14 2012.13
From ML {Amt | from Banks (At | From NBFC (At | From Sanks (Ame
in in in locs) in ncs]
aggregate Priacipal outsianding of foany in 10,249 .48 H)l'ﬂ 7.89
Aggregate coniideraton receved (In Lacs) 10,240.40 20,1).8
Wasghted Jvaragh catuity ol loans (I yesr) "E [ET]
Weighted avardge hokding penad of Loans (in yadh) 2.64 718 -
Retention of DEnetital £Conome it erest (i %) % 10%
Conetr b Of Tannbie Secunty Coverage (11 %) Ms% 221%:
Ratng wiie catrbntion of rated foand {in Lacs! HA Bk
c)  TheCompany has ROt acquUed OF 50ig B0y loan in defauh
57 Customer Complaints
Sr. N¢ Partxulan 1023-24 -1
Complsinti received by the NBFC from i1 curtamans.
1) No of complunts pending at the begmning of the vear
u}  No. of complaints recerved during the year 30 L]
li}  No. ol complats rediessed during the yeat 2% 5
i) {a] OF which, number of complaints rejected by the NEFC
Wl No. of complaints pending at the end of the year I
by Lha NBSC trom Offuce of Ombudiman
v} Number of mmntanatie cOMOLNNTS recHved by the NBFC from Offce of Ombudsman a3 L}
v) {2} Of 5, numbar of camplaints resplved in favour of the NBFC by Qtfice of Ombugsman 3 t
vl (b} O S, number of complaints resolved through concilation/meda ban/advisories sued by Office of Ombudsma 3
%) {c} Of 5, number of complaints resolved aftes passing of Awards by Ofice of Dmbudsman against the NBFC
w)  Numbaer of Awards within the ume {other than those appealed}
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Notes to the Financial Statements icontinved;
for the year ended Morch 31, 2024

Amount in Rs. takhs

57

59

C C J: (<

Top § prounds of complass received by the NBFCs from oustomers

Grownds of Complaintt {2 complaint relating ta} Number of Numbers of % ncre e/ Number of Of §, number of
T n the
panding at the received during the numbar ol pending ot the and  pending beyond 30
baglaning of the yeoar complaints of the year dayt
year racalved over the
previous year

Current Yaur
Dwlay n issuing Foreciasure ststement 14
ML-LolINg / 1358 profmuie by Saked Manages
Warver of Foreclosure Charges

w m e

Ratund of Processing fer
Others 1 25%

"R W e

Pravious Yeer

Delty in issuing Foreckasure statement 1
Mis-1eling / hilse promase by Sales manager

Ruda behaviour by Collections team

Othens

§5%

Corporate Soclsl Responsibliity

Particulens Wik 012-13
SMOUNT Fequired to be pent by the company during the year, 4 13
amoum of expenditure incurted, &0 15
shortiakl at the end of the vear,

totel of prvdaus years shortfall,

rentan for shortfal,

nature of CSR activities, iRefer Note ** helow) .

detally of related party LR E. iOn to # trust by tha yin relation 1a CSR NiL ML
expenditure
where § provsion is made with respect 1o 2 Kability mourred by enterng into 3 contractusi obligalion, the

- s ap oW

=

mavements m the provision during the year shall be shawn

The average profit betore tax of the Comparry for the last three financlal vesrs was Rs. 2003.30 Lakivs, basts which the Company was required 1o spend Rs. 40 lakhs
towards Corp Social [CSR] ies for the current Minancial year.

¢ Tha Company spent Rs.4D lakhs towsrds the CSR expenditure through Mantra Sodial Services, a TSRk egE under tha T Art, 2011
("vmolementing Agency’] with the spproval of the Baard of Directors of the Campany. The CSR amount wa spant an the education transformation program incuding
school leadarship program, taacher and par across the states of UP, Punjab snd Binar, The acuvity shall
result in 3 batter outcome for children such as , Iteracy and ¥ 3ICDIEs etr.

Trade paysbies aging schedule - March 31, 2024

Se Particulars cutslanding for foflowing periods trom due date of payment
Mo Not due <1 yaar 1-2 yenrs 23 pears »3 yean Tatsl
1 MSME = 155 - = 15%

W Others 718 C 738
ki Crispuled dues -MSME - -
N Crspuled dues - Others

¥ Unbaled 51 51

Trade paysbiei ﬂm-m 31, 1023

S Particulars outstanding for faliowing periods fram due date of payment

Na Hot due <1 year 1-2yenny 1-3 yeary 23 yrany Total
I MSME 52 ’ 52
Wi Othars L1k} 813

M Oisputed dues -MSME
W Oisputed dues - Others o
v Unbilled a8 as

Hote
(1) During the financial year 2023-24, therd wibi¢ Ad plyments made to MSMEs beyond 45 days, hence there was na Eability of delyved interest on the same,

[F] Amount payabie 10 related parties during the Ainancial vear 1023.24 Ry Ml [2022-23: Ks. HA).
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&1

62

83

The Company has nat d the p i D {imits for singe b limit and group bofrower limit.

The Company has not granted any unsecured loans where the underlying collateral is in the form of intangible securties like chargn ovar the rights, icenses,
authority ete.

None of the reg: have i

P any on the Company during the financial year 2023-24 (2022-23 : NH].

Relatiothip with struck off companies:
The company daes not have any ransactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Comganies Act. 1556.

Registration and Satisfcation of Charges :
Registratnn and satisafetion of charges were performed as per the terms of sanction within the due dates during the year ended March 31, 3024 and March 31,
2023 respactively.

65 Utiisation of bowrowed funds :
[i) Mo funds have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrawed funds or share premium or any other spurces or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other or ent ) Juding loreign entities [* iaries”), with the g, whether I wailting or otherwise, that the
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Intasimadiacy shall, whether, dicectly or indirectly lend or invest k0 othar persons of entities i i in amy manner
[*Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the ke on behalf of the Ultimate Baneficiaries.

by or on behatf of the company

(i) Na funds have beea received by the Company fram any person(s) or entity[ies), inctuding foreign entities [“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whather
recarded In writing or olherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend of invest [n other persons o¢ antities Identified in any mannet
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Utimate Beneficianes”) or pravide any guarantee, security o the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Ragistration abtained from other finanzial sector regulators : Noone

Detaits of financing of parent Company products : None

Draw down from reserves : Nane

There are no Cverséas Assets

Thare are no Off-baltance Sheet SPVs sponsored by the Company which are required to be consolidated as per accounting narms.

During the current #nd previous year, the Company has not eatered into any derivative contract and at the year-end there is no sutstanding derivative contract.
, di: ining to derivatives are not applicabls

During the current and previous year, the Cempany has nol entered inta any sale of Fnancial assets by way of 2ssignment nar purchased or sald any Noa-periorning
asset. Therelore, disclosures pertaining to it are not applicable,

The Company has not traded or Invested in Cypla curreacy or Virtual Currency during the current and prewicus financial years.

The Company daes nat have any such transaction which Is not recorded in the baoks of accounts that has been surrendered or discloied o5 Income during the year
N Tha tax assessments undes the incame Tax Act, 1961 {such as, seqizh or survey or any other relevant prosaslons of the tncome Tax Act, 1351

The Company ka1 not made any Loans or Advances in the nature ef loans that are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under
Companies Act, 2013,) aither severally ar jointly with any other person, that are:

() repaysble on demand a¢

(b) without specifying any tetms or period of repayment

The accounting systems are equipped with a festure for recording an audit trail, and this functionality has been active throughout the yaar for all relevant
transactions. Additionally, the Campany has imph d 3 Privileged Accesa M. (PAM) teal te monitor back-end access and any dicect database changes.
During the previous year, privileged user rights were not accessed.

There have been na events after the reporting dalte thet require distlosure in these financial statements.

Thiers were no lrauds reported during the current and financial years {Pursuant te Mastes Direction DNBS. PPD.01/66,15.00172016-17 dated September 29, 2016).

The Previous Year's figures have been regrouped [ reartanged wheravir necéssary 16 make them comparable to current year.
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